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Our Vision

Connect the Community to
Islamic Mode of Financing.

Our Mission

We have committed
to progressively
enhance fully
researched |slamic
Financing Products
and shall continue to
meet our customers’
needs.
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Six Years at a Glance

(Amounts in '000)

June-16 June-17 June-18 June-19 June-20 June-21
BANALNCE SHEET
Authorized Capital 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Equity:
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Capital 340,200 340,200 340,200 340,200 340,200 340,200
Reserves 204,19 209,697 215,477 216,693 216,693 218,177
Un-appropriated Profit (362,587) (358,247) (352,254) (364,283) (419,594) (413,658)
Total 181,732 191,650 203,423 192,609 137,298 144,719
Liabilities:
Redeemable Capital 100,000 400,000 400,000 445,518 1,013,549 1,014,102
Musharikah Arrangements 955,925 1,101,205 1,193,495 1,223,622 648,739 535,129
Accrued, Deferred & Other Liabilities 189,704 180,964 195,971 267,847 284,388 254,069
Total 1,245,629 1,682,169 1,789,466 1,936,987 1,946,675 1,803,299
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,427,361 1,873,819 1,992,889 2,129,596 2,083,974 1,948,018
Operating Assets:
ljarah Assets 208,430 178,858 225,738 363,71 509,909 450,440
Defferred tax 48,144 56,069 61,834 64,399 64,399 64,399
Musharikah Investment 458,781 889,074 896,722 857,740 650,888 582,556
Morabaha Investment 309,143 276,995 275,416 308,264 305,443 251,927
Sub Total 1,024,498 1,400,996 1,459,710 1,594,114 1,530,639 1,349,321
Other Assets:
Assets in own use 9,914 2,561 3,390 3,338 3,108 3,217
Investment in Subsidiary - 50,000 76,500 76,500 76,500 76,500
Deposits, Prepayments & other receivabl 352,570 378,509 406,090 412,619 448,624 407,232
Cash & Bank Balances 30,065 41,753 47,169 43,025 25,103 111,748
Sub Total 402,858 472,823 533,149 535,482 553,335 598,697
Total Assets 1,427,356 1,873,819 1,992,859 2,129,596 2,083,974 1,948,018
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
Operating Income 135,358 125,081 128,663 169,527 187,385 139,449
Other Income 4,124 6,114 10,749 17,903 10,700 13,573
Total Income 139,482 131,195 139,413 187,430 198,084 153,023
Operating Expenses 58,813 29,374 15,117 30,319 45,719 24,877
Financial Charges 57,792 79,970 93,504 150,423 207,676 119,205
Management Fee 1,716 2,672 3,079 - - -
Total Expenses 118,321 112,016 111,700 180,742 253,395 144,082
Profit before Taxation 21,161 24,048 27,713 6,688 (55,311) 7,421
Taxation 6,371 3,836 1,041 (463) - -
Profit for the year 27,532 27,884 28,754 6,225 (55,311) 7,421
DISTRIBUTION:
Cash Dividend(%) 5.00 5.00 5.00 - - -
Bonus (%) - - - - - -
RATIOS:
Breakup Value (Rs.) 5.34 5.63 5.98 5.66 4.04 4.25
Earning per Certificate (Rs.) 0.53 0.82 0.81 0.8 (1.63) 0.22
Return on Equity (Rs.) 15.15 14.55 14.14 3.23 (40.29) 513
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Chairman’s Review

| am pleased to present the review for the year ended June 30, 2021 highlighting
the Modaraba’s performance and the role of the Board of Directors in guiding the
management to carry out its responsibility for the benefits of all its stakeholders.

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt) Limited,
the Management Company of First Punjab Modaraba has performed its duties
diligently in upholding the best interest of the certificate holders of the Modaraba
and has managed the affairs of the Modaraba in an effective and efficient manner.
By the grace of Allah; the Modaraba has demonstrated a strong financial
performance in a challenging business environment by attaining profit after tax of
Rs.7.42 million.

The Board exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in Modaraba
Ordinance, 1980; the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 read with the provisions of the Code
contained in the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the
Modaraba’s certificate are listed. The Board performed its duties and
responsibilities diligently and contributed effectively in guiding the Modaraba in
all its strategic affairs. The Board also played a key role in monitoring of
management performance and focus on major risks areas. All Directors including
Independent Directors fully participated and contributed in decision making
process of the Board. The Board during the year ended June 30, 2021 played an
effective role in managing the affairs of the Modaraba and achieving its objectives.

The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive and
independent directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code
and that members of the Board and its respective committees have adequate skill,
experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Modaraba. The Board also
ensured that meetings of the Board and that of its committees were held with the
requisite quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolutions
and that the minutes of all the meetings including committees are appropriately
recorded and maintained. The Board exercised its powers in light of the power
assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
applicable on the Modaraba and the Board has always prioritized the compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations in terms of their conduct as directors and
exercising their powers and decision making.

As Chairman of your Modaraba; | will continue to be responsible for leading the

Board. | will remain firmly committed to ensuring that your Modaraba complies
with all relevant codes and regulations and ensuring that our management team

Annual Report 2021 / Page 7
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continues to take decisions that will create value for you in the short, medium and
long term.

| am pleased to record appreciation for the continued dedications, commitment
and loyalty of the employees of your Modaraba. | am also thankful to all
stakeholders for the confidence they have shown during our difficult period. | also
appreciate the assistance and continued support of the various Government
Departments, Bankers, Customers, Stakeholders and specially Registrar
Modaraba.

)
.r':}"t.-“

Nadeem Aamir
Chairman
October 29, 2021
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt.) Limited, the Management
Company of First Punjab Modaraba (the Modaraba) is pleased to present the 28th
Directors’ Report of the Modaraba, together with audited financial statements and
auditors’ report for year ended June 30, 2021.

Economic Outlook and Future Prospects

As reported in Pakistan Economic Survey 2020-21, the economy achieved V-shaped
recovery on the back of broad-based growth across all sectors. During FY2021, SBP
maintained the policy rate at 7.0 percent. The existing stance of monetary policy remained
appropriate to support the economic recovery with inflation expectations well-anchored
and maintaining financial stability. It is pertinent to mention that inflation all over the
world remained volatile mainly due to supply-side disruptions in commodities due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Rising international prices are putting pressure on domestic prices.

Going forward in FY22, the economic momentum that became evident in FY21is expected
to strengthen further. The business confidence has returned and economic activity is
slowly getting back to normal. It is expected that macroeconomic stabilization measures
and structural reforms supported by international development partners will help the
economy to move on a higher and sustainable growth trajectory.

Principal activities and performance of Modaraba

The Modaraba is a perpetual and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged in
the business of ljarah, Musharikah and Morabaha financing, equity investment and other
related businesses in accordance with the injunctions of Islam. The diversification of
business model, utilizing multi-purpose status of the Modaraba through construction and
development activity has been envisioned as a business prospect. Accordingly, the
Modaraba has obtained approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan to
undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity by insertion of a new clause for
this purpose in its Prospectus.

The year under consideration was year of turnaround in terms of bottom line which turned
positive to the tune of Rs.7 million plus from negative of Rs. 55 million of last year. The
most significant factors included reduction of 42.5% in financial cost and positive impact
of recoveries from chronic non-performing assets. On the back of these two factors, FPM
was able to absorb adverse impact of revised Prudential Regulations in shape of
additional suspension of income amounting Rs. 12.50 million. At the same time, FPM was
able to book fresh assets of Rs.400 million despite subdued business sentiments due to
COVID-19 outbreak.

Going forward, booking of fresh assets for sustainable growth will be one of the
fundamental features of business strategy while recovery from non-performing assets will
remain the other priority. The addition of construction segment in business model is
expected to bring the much needed diversity and couple with the revenue streams of the
Modaraba.

Real estate and construction activity

As also explained in note 7 to the financial statements, the diversification of business
model, utilizing multi-purpose status of the Modaraba through construction and
development activity has been envisioned as a business prospect. The work on new
business segment has been started. The FPM has done significant amount of spade work
in terms of capacity building, compliance of regulatory framework, investment in human
resource etc. Plots being acquired, procedural work since started and preliminary
processing for construction is also underway.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 9
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Financial Results

The financial results of the Modaraba are summarized below:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Profit / (loss) for the year 7,420,750 (55,310,891)
Accumulated loss brought forward (419,594,296) (364,283,405)

Other comprehensive income - -
Profit available for appropriation - -

Appropriations
Transfer to statutory reserve 1,484,150 -
Final dividend: Nil (2020:Nil) - _

Accumulated loss carried forward (413,657,696) (419,594,296)

Earning per certificate - Rs. 0.22 (1.63)

Profit Distribution and transfer to reserves

During the year, no dividend was declared while Rs.1,484,150 were transferred to reserves
by the Board.

FPM Financial Strength Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (Pvt.) Limited (PACRA) has maintained long term
rating of “A-" and short term rating of “A2" with “Stable” outlook, based on annual and
interim review.

Wholly owned Subsidiary

The wholly owned subsidiary of the Modaraba, i.e. Punjab Capital Securities (Private)
Limited recorded net profit of Rs.7.6 million during the year. The total assets expanded to
the tune of Rs.129.5 million by close of the year. The Company is expected to continue with
the good run in future.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Modaraba has complied with all the requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance as required by the listing regulations. Accordingly, the Directors are pleased
to confirm the following:

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba, present
its state of affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity;

b) Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained;

Annual Report 2021 / Page 10
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c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment;

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departures there from have
been adequately disclosed and explained;

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored;

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

g) There were no principal risks or uncertainties facing the Modaraba.

h) During the financial year, construction and real estate segment has been added to
the business of the Modaraba, while there were no significant changes concerning
the nature of the business of its subsidiary.

i) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate
governance as detailed in listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) expect for those mentioned in the statement
of compliance.

j)  There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Modaraba which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Modaraba to which the financial statement relates and the date of the report.

k) The Board of directors and its management team are fully determined to move the
Modaraba from present situation of uncertainties and for this a strategic plan has
been developed and you will see positive improvements in the foreseeable future.

) Key operating and financial data for last six years, Pattern of holding by the
certificate holders and additional related information is annexed.

m) During the year; four meetings of the Board of Directors and four audit committee
meetings were held separately. Attendance by each Director and member of audit
committee is annexed.

n) Majority of the members of the Audit Committee are amongst independent and
non-executive directors.

0) There are no outstanding demands of statutory payments on account of taxes,
duties, levies and charges as at 30 June 2021, except for those disclosed in financial
statements.

p) The value of investments of the staff provident fund, based on audited accounts,
was Rupees 4,400,000 as at 30 June, 2021.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
The requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, relevant for year ended June 30, 2021 have been duly complied with and any

exceptions have been disclosed in the Statement of Compliance with the Best Practices
of Corporate Governance.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 11
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The Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors is composed of seven members, with statutory representation of
different category of directors, which includes independent directors, non-executive
directors and executive directors as required by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. The Board is responsible for making strategic decisions
with respect to important management matters, including the execution of important
business activities and other matters as prescribed by law. These decisions are made after
deliberating matters according to established criteria: assessing risks and giving due
consideration to ground realities. The Board is also responsible for supervising and
monitoring conduct guidelines.

1. The total number of directors is seven (7) comprising of six (6) male and one (1) female
directors.

2. The Board included one (1) executive, four (4) non-executive directors and two (2) were
independent directors.

3. The composition of Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Imran Bashir,
Ms. Samina Afsar,

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Nadeem Aamir
Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Mr. Umar Sheikh,
Mr. Khawar Shahid

Executive Directors Mr. Aamir Malik

Board Meeting and Attendance

During the year four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba were held;
attendance by each director is shown below:

Designation Number of

meetings

Attended
1 Mr. Nadeem Amir Chairman / Director 4
2 Mr. Aamir Malik Chief Executive / Director 4
3 Mr. ljaz-ur-Rehman Qureshi Director 4
4 Mr. Umer Igbal Sheikh Director 3
5 Mr. Imran Bashir Director 4
6 Ms. Samina Afsar Director 2
7 Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari Director 2

*During the year, Mr. Khawar Shahid Ansari joined the Board as member.

The Board of Directors has established Audit Committee, Human Resource Committee
and Risk Management Committee in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 12
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Audit Committee Meeting and Attendance

During the year four (4) meetings of the Board Audit Committee of the Modaraba were
held; attendance by each member is as under:

Sr. Name Designation Number of
No. meetings
Attended
1 Mr. Imran Bashir Chairman 4
2 Mr. ljaz-ur-Rehman Qureshi Member 4
3 Ms. Samina Afsar Member 2

Human Resource Committee Meeting and Attendance

During the year one (1) meeting of the Human Resource Committee of the Modaraba was
held; attendance by each member is as under:

Designation Number of

meetings

Attended
1 Ms. Samina Afsar Chairperson 1
2 Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi, Member 1
3 Mr. Umer Igbal Sheikh Member 1
4 Mr. Aamir Malik, Member Member 1

- Leave of absence was granted to the Directors, who could not attend the Board
meetings.

- The Modaraba has the policy to pay Rs. 25,000 as fee to independent directors
only, for attending every meeting of the Board of Directors or committees of the
Board. During the year, an accumulated amount of Rs.300,000 was paid to two
independent directors.

- No trades in certificates of the Modaraba were carried out by the Directors,
Executives or their spouses and minor children during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Related Party Transactions

Allrelated party transactions during the financial year ended on June 30, 2021 were placed
before the Audit Committee and the Board for their review and subsequently approved.
These transactions were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board.
All these transactions were in line with the transfer pricing methods and the policy for
related parties approved by the Board.

Role of Certificate-Holders

The Board aims to ensure that the Modaraba’s certificate holders are kept informed about
major developments affecting the Modaraba’s state of affairs. To achieve this objective,
information is communicated to certificate holders through quarterly, half-yearly and
annual reports. The Board appreciates certificate-holders’ active participation at annual
review meeting to ensure high level of accountability.
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Auditors

The present auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, being eligible for
appointment and upon their consent (subject to customary risk procedures) to act as
auditors, have been appointed auditors of the Modaraba for financial year ending June 30,
2022 subject to the approval of Registrar Modaraba.

Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct that sets out core values relating to lawful and
ethical conduct of business. All employees have a copy of this code of conduct and are
expected to observe high standards of integrity and fair dealing in relation to customers,
staff and regulations. This forms a part of the Modaraba’s compliance structure.

Social, Ethical and Environmental Responsibilities

The Board is conscious of social, ethical and environmental matters and is planning for its
continued participation in these areas of public interest.

Chairman’s Review

The accompanied Chairman review deals with the performance of the Modaraba for the
year ended June 30, 2021 and future outlook. The directors endorse the contents of the
review.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Modaraba is committed to establishing mutually beneficial relations with all
stakeholders, Pakistan Stock Exchange, SECP and other business partners of the
Modaraba. Alhamdulillah during the period under review relations with all stakeholders
remained cordial.

Post Balance Sheet Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Modaraba
have occurred between the end of financial year of the Modaraba and date of this report.

Acknowledgments

The Board is grateful for the continuous guidance and support extended by the Registrar
Modaraba and Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and expects to take their
benefit in future as well.

For and on behalf of the Board

fb B HQ}Z ﬁt}f%

(Aamir Malik) (ljaz ur Rehmén Qureshi)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Lahore: October 29, 2021
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Statement of Compliance
withListed Companies (Codeof Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019

Name of company: FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA
Year ending: JUNE 30, 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:-

1. The total number of directors is Seven as per the following,-
a. Male: Six

b. Female: One

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

i. Independent directors Two
ii. Non-executive directors Four
iii. Executive directors One
iv. Female directors One (also an independent director)

The fraction required for minimum number of independent directors, being less
than 0.5, has not been rounded up to one.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more
than seven listed companies, including this modaraba;

4. The modaraba has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that
appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the modaraba
along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate
strategy and significant policies of the modaraba. The Board has ensured that
complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of
approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by the Board as empowered by the relevant provisions
of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has
complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration
of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;
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9. The following directors have obtained certifications under directors training
program:

Mr. Nadeem Amir

Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Mr. Aamir Malik

Ms. Samina Afsar

Mr. Imran Bashir

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company
secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the

Regulations.

1. Chief financial officer and Chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-

a) Audit Committee

Chairman Mr. Imran Bashir
Member Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Ms. Samina Afsar

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Chairperson Ms. Samina Afsar

Member Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh
Member Mr. Aamir Malik

¢) Risk Management Committee

Chairman Mr. ljaz ur Rehman Qureshi
Member Mr. Umar Igbal Sheikh
Member Mr. Aamir Malik

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following, -

a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Annual
c) Risk Management Committee: On need basis
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15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the
policies and procedures of the modaraba;

16. The statutory auditors of the modaraba have confirmed that they have been
given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they
and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the
modaraba;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these
Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of
the Regulations have been complied with.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirement of proviso to regulation 24
is given below:

i. Inview of the scale of operations of Modaraba, same person remained CFO
and company secretary.

AT
I' ‘EW

Signature (s)
NADEEM AMIR
Chairman
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Review Report to the Certificate Holders
OF FIRST PUNJAB MODARABA

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Reqgulations, 2019 (the Requlations) prepared by the Board of
Directors (the Board) of Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited, the Management
Company of First Punjab Modaraba (the Modaraba) for the year ended 30 June 2021 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of the
Management Company of the Modaraba. Our responsibility is to review whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Management Company's compliance
withthe provisions of the Regulations in respect of the Modaraba and report if it does not
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review
is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Boards'statement oninternalcontrol coversallrisks and controls or to form an opinion on
the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Management Company's corporate
governance procedures andrisks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee,
and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review
and approval, the Modaraba's related party transactions and also ensure compliance with
the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not
carried out procedures to assessand determine the Management Company's process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were taken
at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the note reference where this is stated in the Statement of
Compliance.

S. No. Mote Reference

Description
(i) 19 (i)

In view of the scale of operations of Modaraba, the position
of CFO and company secretary were held by same person.

(W | c..__,ﬂ - S —

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants
Place: Lahore

Date: 30 October 2021
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

The Certificate Holders are hereby notified that the Certificate Transfer Books
shall remain closed from 19-11-2021 to 26-11-2021 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of attending Annual Review Meeting. All transfers received in order upto
close of business hours on November 18, 2021 with our Registrar’s office, M/s.
Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., H.M House, 7-Bank Square, The Mall,
Lahore, will be considered in time.

The Annual Review Meeting of the Certificate holders will be held at 10:00 am on
Friday, November 26, 2021 through video link (Zoom Meeting) to review the
performance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2021 in terms of
Regulation No.33, Chapter IV of Modaraba Regulations, 2021.

The Certificate Holders are requested to send intimation through valid email ID
to the address given below to participate in the meeting through video link, at

least seven (07) days prior to the date of meeting:

arm2021@punjabmodaraba.com.pk

The Modaraba will communicate participation link through return email. Further,
the certificate holders may send their comments / suggestions on the above
email address or on Whatsapp / Mobile no. 0300 0774434, at least seven (07)
days prior to the date of meeting.

The annual audited financial statements of the Modaraba for year ended June 30,
2021 are also available on Modaraba's website:
www.punjabmodaraba.com.pk.

By the Order of
Board of Directors

N, —

T

(Mudassar Kaiser Pal)
COMPANY SECRETARY
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As on 30 June 2021

Number of Shareholdings Total Number of | Percentage of Total
ShareHolders From | To Share Held Capital

929 1- 100 41,058 0.12
1376 101 - 500 380,903 112
1036 501 - 1000 845,222 2.48
590 1001 - 5000 1,343,748 3.95
104 5001 - 10000 778,048 2.29
39 10001 - 15000 501,682 1.47
25 15001 - 20000 443,486 1.30
17 20001 - 25000 395,883 116
13 25001 - 30000 366,987 1.08
4 30001 - 35000 132,418 0.39
6 35001 - 40000 220,568 0.65
2 40001 - 45000 86,500 0.25
3 45001 - 50000 148,000 0.44
2 50001 - 55000 105,500 0.31

1 55001 - 60000 59,000 0.17

1 60001 - 65000 64,000 0.19
2 65001 - 70000 137,550 0.40
5 70001 - 75000 366,900 1.08
2 80001 - 85000 168,000 0.49

1 85001 - 90000 89,500 0.26
4 95001 - 100000 396,500 117
3 100001 - 105000 302,000 0.89
3 105001 - 110000 322,786 0.95

1 10001 - 115000 112,500 0.33

1 115001 - 120000 117,923 0.35

1 130001 - 135000 135,000 0.40

1 150001 - 155000 151,000 0.44

1 175001 - 180000 178,500 0.52
4 195001 - 200000 793,144 2.33
1 210001 - 215000 211,000 0.62

1 215001 - 220000 217,500 0.64

1 220001 - 225000 223,500 0.66

1 225001 - 230000 230,000 0.68

1 255001 - 260000 257,000 0.76

1 295001 - 300000 300,000 0.88

1 350001 - 355000 351,000 1.03

1 365001 - 370000 367,500 1.08

1 495001 - 500000 500,000 1.47

1 520001 - 525000 525,000 1.54

1 640001 - 645000 642,223 1.89

1 1265001 - 1270000 1,265,777 3.72

1 1320001 - 1325000 1,325,000 3.89

1 5095001 - 5100000 5,099,500 14.99

1 5230001 - 5235000 5,232,194 15.38

1 8085001 - 8090000 8,088,500 23.78
4,193 34,020,000 100
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Categories of Certificate Holders

As at 30 June 2021

No. of
Categories of Shareholders Certificate Shares Held Percentage
Holders
Individuals 4137 13,556,104 39.8475
Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties
THE BANK OF PUNJAB 4,788 0.0141
PUNJAB MODARABA SERVICES (PVT) LTD. 13,320,694 39.1555
TRUSTEE-THE BANK OF PUNJAB EMPLOYEES GRATUITY FUND 5,099,500 14.9897
Running Total: 3 18,424,982 54.1593
Mutual Funds
SECURITY STOCK FUND LTD. 3,100 0.0091
PRUDENTIAL STOCKS FUND LIMITED 100 0.00029
Running Total: 2 3,200 0.0094
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and minor
children Nil Nil
Executives Nil Nil
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 400 0.0012
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies, Takaful,
Modarabas and Pension Funds. 36 1,860,848 5.4699
Others
JAHANGIR SIDDIQUI & CO. LTD. 3,202 0.0094
ALLY BROTHERS & COMPANY M/S. (PAKISTAN) LTD. 17,500 0.0514
HAJVERI HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD 500 0.0015
SAPPHIRE FIBRES LTD 500 0.0015
TRUST LEASING CORPORATION LTD. 1,775 0.0052
B.R.R INVESTMENTS (PVT.) LTD 8,750 0.0257
MORGAN STANLEY INTERNATIONAL 1,200 0.0035
BILAL ASSOCIATES 19 0.0001
DADABHOY LEASING COMPANY LTD. 6,804 0.0200
IMPEX CORPORATION (PVT.) LTD. 3,248 0.0095
MORGAN STANLEY TRUST 19,335 0.0568
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND 3,747 0.0110
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 106,786 0.3139
FRANKLIN INVESTMENT BANK LTD 1,100 0.0032
Running Total: 14 174,466 0.5128
4193 34,020,000 100.00
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Auditors’ Report to the Certificate Holders

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated balance sheet of First Punjab Modaraba (the
Modaraba) as at 20 June 2021 and the related unconsolidated profit and loss account,
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow statement and
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
(hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

These financial statements are the Modaraba management company's (Punjab Modaraba
Services (Private) Limited) responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a
system of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity
with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XX X! of 1980),
and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by the Modaraba company, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) Inour opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Modaraba Company in
respect of First Punjab Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXl of 1980), and Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

{(b) In our opinion:

(i) the unconsolidated balance sheet and unconsolidated profit and loss account
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXl of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and are
in agreement with the books of accounts and are further in agreement with
accounting policies consistently applied;

(ii)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba's
business; And

(iii} the business conducted, investments made, and the expenditure incurred during
the year were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the
modaraba;
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(c)  Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the unconsolidated balance sheet, unconsolidated profit and loss account,
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated cash flow
statement and unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX| of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies
and Modaraba Rules, 1981, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the profit, its
comprehensive income its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended;
and

@ In our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,
1980(XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the Modaraba company and deposited in the
Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance,

1 CorX B

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Farooq Hameed
Lahore: 30 October 2021
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Annual Shari'ah Advisor’s Report

| have conducted the Shari‘ah review of First Punjab Modaraba managed by Punjab Modaraba
Services (PVT) Limited for the period ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the
requirements of the Shari‘ah Compliance and Shari‘ah Audit Mechanism for Modarabas and

report that:

Vi.
Vii.

viil.

The Modaraba has a mechanism which has strengthened the Shari’ah compliance, in
letter and spirit and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the Modaraba are
in line with the Shari‘ah principles.

The major developments took place during the period included ancillary Shari‘ah
Compliant Products, arrangements for Covid relief for customers under the guidelines
issued by the Regulator and Shariah Advisor.

Detailed training sessions have conducted for relevant staff during the period.

The agreement(s) entered by the Modaraba are Shari‘ah compliant and the financing
agreement(s) have been executed on the formats as approved by the Religious Board
of SECP and all the related conditions have been met.

During the year, the Shari‘ah Advisor visited the premises regularly to provide Shari‘ah
guidance in day to day operations.

History of certain cases reviewed and approved them according to Shari‘ah guidelines
Shari‘ah compliance review has been conducted and some cases which were required
to be consulted in accordance with Shari‘ah principles has been discussed with
concerned staff and dully resolved.

Charity amount has been credited to Charity Account.

Recommendation(s)
Modaraba should put more efforts to get the true spirit of Shariah compliance by taking

the prior approvals from Shariah in all relevant operations, investments and procedures.
Conclusion:

To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the
business transactions undertaken by the Modaraba, and overall business operations
are in conformity with the Shari‘ah requirements.

May Allah make us successful in this world and hereafter and forgive our mistakes.

Dated : October 06, 2021
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Unconsolidated Balance Sheet

As at 30 June 2021

ASSETS
Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets
- ljarah assets
- Assets in own use
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary
Long term musharikah investment - secured
Long term morabaha investment - secured
Long term deposits
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Short term morabaha investment - secured
Current maturity of long term investment
ljarah rental receivable

Development properties - Land

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Tax refund due from government
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorized certificate capital

50,000,000 (30 June 2020: 50,000,000) modaraba

certificates of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital

34,020,000 (30 June 2020: 34,020,000) certificates of Rs. 10 18.1

Capital reserves
Revenue reserves

Non current liabilities
Long term security deposits
Deferred morabaha income

Current liabilities
Current maturity of non current liabilities

Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured

Profit payable

Trade and other payables
Provision for taxation
Unclaimed profit

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The attached notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Note 2021 2020
Rubees Rupbees
5.1 450,439,651 509,909,085
5.2 2,814,633 3,107,836
6 402,186 -
7 76,500,000 76,500,000
8 220,934,378 228,414,227
9 - 8,821,104
10 203,444 203,444
n 64,398,663 64,398,663
815.692.955 891.354.359
12 251,718,651 290,546,077
13 346,068,240 412,794,668
14 235,750,535 272,887,424
15 6,975,000 -
16 175,942,859 187,551,827
4,121,734 3,736,354
17 111,748,425 25,102,916
1,132,325,444 1,192,619,266
1,948,018,399 2,083,973,625
18 500,000,000 500,000,000
340,200,000 340,200,000
19 218,176,678 216,692,528
19 (413,657,696) (419,594,296)
144,718,982 137,298,232
20 42,775,909 61,340,259
g‘! - 4,206,452
577,904,683 714,285,324
23 89,927,377 85,702,657
24 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225
25 23,762,005 37,742,338
26 78,716,761 77,937,508
1,519,913 -
17,367,085 17,458,341
1.225.394.734 1.232.390.069
1,948,018,399 2,083,973,625
27

For Puniab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company)

\ “
\, - /‘
\’:}—' F\ ]l/f
\ I_
Director

Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

NS

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Chief Executive
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Vo)

Director
Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited
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Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
As at 30 June 2021

Note 2021 2020

Rubees Rupbees
Income
Income from ijarah rentals 28.1 68,026,823 64,229,845
Income from morabaha financing 28.2 3,841,615 10,246,204
Income from diminishing musharaka financing 28.3 63,839,737 110,808,247
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 29 3,741,006 2,100,302
Other income 30 13,573,174 10,699,583

153,022,355 198,084,181
Expenses
Administrative expenses 31 43,044,852 38,373,706
Finance cost 32 119,204,898 207,676,049
162,249,750 246,049,755

Operating loss before provision (9,227,395) (47,965,574)
Reversal for impairment of iiarah assets 5.000.000 -
Reversal / (provision) acainst iiarah rentals - net 13.168.058 (293.700)
Provision for musharikah investment - (7,051,617)

18,168,058 (7,345,317)
Operating profit / (loss) after provision and impairment 8,940,663 (55,310,891)
Modaraba Company's management fee 33 - -

8,940,663 (55,310,891)
Taxation 34 (1,519,913) -
Profit / (loss) for the year 7,420,750 (55,310,891)
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 35 0.22 (1.63)

The attached notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

N, —

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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Chief Executive
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Director
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

Ao

Director
Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited
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Unconsolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
For the year Ended 30 June, 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rubees Rubees

Profit / (loss) for the year 7,420,750 (55,310,891)

Other Combrehensive Income for the vear

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the Year

7,420,750 _ (55,310,891)

The attached notes 1to 44 form an intearal nart of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

NS

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Chief Executive
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

\ F\,f‘/ Viigal)
S

Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Director
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year Ended 30 June, 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 1 333,818,097 200,577,294
Profit paid on redeemable capital (78,462,062) (69,980,950)
Profit paid on musharikah finances (54,575,474) (140,557,198)
Taxes paid (385,380) (583,340)

(133,422,916) (211,121,488)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 200,395,181 (10,544,194)
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from disbosal of fixed assets 27.500 -
Purchase of fixed assets in own use 5.2 (628.445) (426.507)
Net cash generated from investing activities (600,945) (426,507)
Cash flow from financing activities
Musharikah finances-net 22 (113,609,839) (574,882,956)
Redeemable capital-net 24 552,368 568,030,732
Profit distributed amona the certificate holders (91.256) (99.037)
Net cash generated from financing activities (113,148,727) (6,951,261)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 86,645,509 (17,921,962)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25,102,916 43,024,878
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 111,748,425 25,102,916

The attached notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

(Modaraba Management Company)

Oy — r[u

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year Ended 30 June, 2021

Balance as at 01 July 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2021

The attached notes 1to 44 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

N, —

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited

Capital Reserve

Revenue Reserve

Certificate Statutory Accumulated
capital reserve loss Total
---------------------------------- Rupees----------mmmmooom oo
340,200,000 216,692,528 (364,283,405) 192,609,123
- - (55,310,891) (55,310,891)
: (55,310,891-) (55,310,89;)
340,200,000 216,692,528 (419,594,296) 137,298,232
- - 7,420,750 7,420,750
- : 7,420,750- 7,420,75(-)
- 1,484,150 (1,484,150) -
340,200,000 218,176,678 (413,657,696) 144,718,982

(Modaraba Management Company)

f

Chief Executive

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

\\‘Q}; p\ } '//

Director
Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

Vo)

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year Ended 30 June, 2021

1 Status and nature of business

First Punjab Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and rules framed there under and is managed by Punjab
Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Punjab), a company
incorporated in Pakistan. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at Office No. 100, 3rd floor,
National Tower, 28-Egerton Road, Lahore. The Modaraba commenced its operations on 23 December
1992. The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Modaraba established its wholly owned subsidiary on November 29, 2016 as a private limited
Company under the name of Punjab Capital Securities (Pvt) Limited. The registered office of Punjab
Capital Securities (Pvt) Limited is situated at 3rd Floor, LSE Plaza, 19-Khayabane Aiwane Igbal, Lahore.
The Company is mainly engaged in the business of brokerage services, portfolio management and
consultancy services.

The Modaraba is a perpetual and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged in the business
of ljarah, Musharikah and Murabaha financing, equity investment and other related businesses in
accordance with the injunctions of Islam.

During the year, Modaraba has obtained approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity by insertion of a new clause for this purpose
in prospectus of the Modaraba on 13 January 2021.

11 Management's Assessment of Going Concern

In assessing the going concern status of the Modaraba, management has carefully assessed number of
factors covering the performance of the business, business prospects and appetite of majority
shareholder to continue financial support. Based on the analysis of these, management is comfortable
that the Modaraba will be able to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Modaraba has made profit after tax of Rs. 7,420,750, which is
mainly due to reduction in finance cost and reversal of provisions. The accumulated loss, net of reserves,
as at 30 June 2021 amount to Rs. 195,481,018 (2020: Rs.202,941,768) which exceeds fifty percent of the
total amount subscribed by the holders of the Modaraba Certificates. Further the current liabilities of the
Modaraba exceed its current assets by Rs. 93,069,290 as at 30 June 2021.

In order to address going concern issue in terms of section 23 of the Modaraba Companies and
Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (the Modaraba Ordinance), The Bank of Punjab
(BOP) being the parent company of the Modaraba’'s Management Company’ is providing enduring
support and has confirmed that it shall continue to provide financial support to the Modaraba in order to
mitigate liquidity risk. The Modaraba has obtained approval from the Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan dated 13 January 2021 to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activities.
Accordingly, financial benefits shall be accrued in books of Modaraba in due course of time. Further, the
Modaraba has made significant progress in terms of recovery from certain classified borrowers resulting
in improvement of net equity in term of compliance of section 23 of the Modaraba Ordinance.

On the basis of support and the arrangements as outlined above and the business plan prepared by the
management, the management is of the view that no material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue
as a going concern and the Modaraba shall be able to operate on going concern basis in the foreseeable
future. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared reflecting these assumptions.
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Basis of preparations
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Such standards as applicable in Pakistan comprises of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- The requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Prudential Regulations for Modarabas
(hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws).

Where provisions and directives issued under Companies Act, 2017 and the relevant laws differ
from IFRS Standards, the provisions and directives issued under Companies Act, 2017 and the
relevant laws have been followed.

The SECP has issued directive (vide SRO 431 (I) / 2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic Financial
Accounting Standard 2 (IFAS 2) shall be followed in preparation of the financial statements by
Companies and Modarabas while accounting for Lease Financing transactions as defined by the
said standard. The Modaraba has adopted the said standard.

The SECP has deferred the applicability of IFRS-9 for Modarabas uptil June 30, 2022 via SRO
800(l) / 2021 dated June 22, 2021. However, the Modaraba had already adopted other
requirements of IFRS 9 except for provision against Islamic financings. Therefore, the Modaraba
has continued same practice during the current year as well. The provision against financing has
been determined in accordance with requirement of the Prudential Regulations.

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Modaraba in which
investments in subsidiary are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the
basis of reported results. Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Modaraba’s
functional currency. Figures have been rounded of to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Sianificant accountina estimates and iudaments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to
exercise judgment in application of the Modaraba’s accounting policies. The estimates, judgment
and associated assumptions are based on the management’s experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision
affects both the current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates
are significant to the Modaraba’s financial statement or where judgment was exercised in the
application of accounting policies are as follows:
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2.4.1 Depreciation/Amortization

Estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of fixed assets in own use and ljarah
assets (note 5).

2.4.2 Provision aqainst non-performina loans and advances

The Modaraba reviews its portfolio to assess amount of non-performing contracts and provision
required there against on a quarterly basis. The provision is made in accordance with the prudential
regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

2.4.3 Income taxes

The Modaraba takes into account relevant provisions of current income tax laws while providing for
current and deferred tax.

2.4.4 Provision aqgainst non performina financina (Suspense income)

The Modaraba reviews its overdue ijarah rentals, morabaha receivable and musharikah receivable at each
reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in profit and loss account, in addition to
the mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the SECP. In
particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and the timing of future
cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions
about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions.

3 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year
ended 30 June 2021

The Modaraba has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation
of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — (Amendments)

IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendments)

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — (Amendments)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation — (Amendments)

IFRS 1 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified
as equity

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did
not have any material effect on the financial statements.
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31

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendment) 01Jan 2020

IFRS 9,

IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reforms (Amendments) 01Jan 2020

and IFRS 7

AST Definiti f Material (A d t 01Jan 2020

and IAS 8 efinition of Material (Amendment) an

IFRS 16 COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments) 01Jan 2020

IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current 01Jan 2022
(Amendments)

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendment) 0O1Jan 2022

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended 01Jan 2022
Use (Amendment)

IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 01Jan 2022
(Amendment)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments- Fees in the "10 per cent’ test for 0O1Jan 2022
derecognition of financial liabilities (Amendment)

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01Jan 2022
(Amendment)

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Modaraba's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for annual reporting
period beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The Modaraba expects that such improvements to the
standards will not have any material impact on the Modaraba's financial statements in the period of
initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date (annual
periods beginning

Standards on or after)

IFRS 1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting St January 01, 2009
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2022
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4.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous year except for the change explained below:

Tangible fixed assets
Assets in own use

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the
Modaraba and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to profit and loss on straight line basis, so as to write off
the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at annual rates mentioned in note 5.2.

Residual values and the useful lives of the assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end
and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted. if appropriate at each reporting
date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The Modaraba assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed asset
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts
and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are charged to income during the period in which they are incurred. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying
amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only where it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Modaraba and the
cost of the items can be measured reliably. The useful lives and amortization method are
reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each reporting date. Amortization is charged
from the month the asset is available for use while in the case of assets disposed of, it is
charged till the month preceding the month of disposal.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any. Is taken to the profit and loss account
in the period in which these arise.
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ljarah Assets

ljarah assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method
whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is written off over the period of facility, which is
considered to be the estimated useful life of the asset. However, in the event the asset is expected
to be available for re-ijarah, depreciation is charged over the economic life of asset using straight
line basis. In respect of additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged
proportionately from the date of delivery of assets to the date of its maturity / termination.

ljarah income is recognized on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due.

Impairment (Including provision for potential ijarah losses and write offs)

The carrying amount of the Modaraba's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment in any asset or group of assets. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and impairment losses are recognized
immediately as an expense in the profit and loss account. For loans and receivables, a provision for
impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Modaraba will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective profit rate.

Provision for non-performing leases, if any, is made in accordance with the requirements of the
Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and is charged to the profit and loss account in the current period. Outstanding
balances in net investment in ljarah finance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of

recoverv.
Investment in Subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable
amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of
investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment
losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised
recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment
loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

liarah rentals and Musharikah investments

ljarah rentals and Musharikah investments are stated net of provision and suspense income. Provision is
recognized for ljarah rentals receivable and musharikah investment, in accordance with the Prudential
Regulations for Modarabas issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Bad
debts are written-off when identified.

Morabaha Investments

Morabaha investments are stated net of provision. Provision is recognized for Morabaha investments in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba's issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Morabaha receivable are recorded by the Modaraba at the invoiced amount and disclosed as such in the
balance sheet.

Purchase and sales under Morabaha and the resultant profit are accounted for on the culmination of
Morabaha transaction.

The profit on that portion of sales revenue not due for payment are deferred by accounting for a debit to
"Unearned Morabaha Income" account with the corresponding credit to "Deferred Morabaha Income"
account and shown in the balance sheet as a liability.
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4.6 Development properties

Property acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for sale in the ordinary course of
business, rather than to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is classified as development
properties and is measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

All project costs incurred or to be incurred are capitalised as a cost of development properties and
mainly includes: costs / rights for free-hold and leasehold land; construction cost, planning and
design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services, property transfer taxes,

construction overheads and other related costs necessary to bring the premises in saleable
condition and development charges.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, based on

market prices at the reporting date less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

The cost of sales recognised in profit or loss is determined with reference to the costs incurred on
the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific costs based on the total area of land sold
for property, in relation to total area of land. The development charges are recognised in profit or
loss on the basis of reimbursable development costs recoverable to date from customers on
property sold apportioned to total area of land sold in relation to total area of land. Development

charges not recoverable from customers are borne by the Modaraba and charged to profit or loss
in the year, in which these are incurred.

The management reviews the carrying values of the development properties on an annual basis.

4.7 Cash and cash eauivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow

statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash with banks in current,
savings and deposit accounts.

4.8 Financial Instruments
4.8.1 Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

The Modaraba has adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with effect from 1 July 2018. Accordingly,
financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCIl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Modaraba’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade debts and bank balance that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Modaraba has applied the practical expedient, the Modaraba initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts that do not contain a significant financing

component or for which the Modaraba has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on

the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level.

The Modaraba’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash

flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Modaraba commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

d) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses

(debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The Modaraba does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Modaraba. The Modaraba measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Modaraba’s financial assets at amortized costs includes advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, ijarah rental receivables, musharikah investment, morabaha investment and long
term deposits.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as
equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Modaraba benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Modaraba does not have equity instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

The Modaraba measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in
the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCIl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in
OCl is recycled to profit or loss.

The Modaraba does not have debt instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Modaraba of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

b) The Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Modaraba has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Modaraba has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Modaraba has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Modaraba also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Modaraba could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Modaraba recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and it is therefore no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Modaraba expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Modaraba considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Modaraba may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Modaraba is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Modaraba. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

However, NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan, based on the clarification of the SECP, have
informed all its members that the provisioning criteria will remain those as framed under Modaraba
Ordinance, 1980 and Rules & Regulations framed therein. Accordingly, the Modaraba has
maintained provision against financing assets in accordance with relevant laws applicable to
Modaraba.

Secures and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its S.R.O No. 985 (1) / 2019 dated
2nd September 2019, in partial modification of its previous S.R.O 229 (1) / 2019 dated February 14,
2019 notified that , in respect of companies holding financial assets due from Government of
Pakistan, the requirement contained in 'IFRS-9 (Financial Instruments ) with respect to application
of Expected credit losses method" shall not be applicable till 30 June 2021, provided that the
company follow relevant requirement of IAS-39 'Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’, in respect of above referred financial assets during the exemption period.
Consequently, these financial statements do not include the impact of ECL method in respect of
‘Tax refunds due from government'.

For bank balances, the Modaraba applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on
lifetime expected credit losses. The Modaraba reviews internal and external information available
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the outstanding
contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the Modaraba has no material impact on amounts in the statement of
financial position as the current methodology adequately reflects requirements of the new
standards.
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4.8.2

4.9

4.10

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - initial recoganition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Modaraba’s financial liabilities include deferred Murabaha income, redeemable capital, trade
and other payables, unclaimed profit, profit payable and long term musharikah finance.
Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs
in the statement of comprehensive income.

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other
liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new

liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsettina of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the financial statements

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Finance arrangements including Certificates of Musharikah
These are carried on the balance sheet at principal amount.

Profits on these arrangements are recoagnized as expense in the period in which they incur.

Profit on Musharikah finance is accounted for on the basis of the projected rate of profit. The effect
of adjustments, if any, between actual rate and projected rate of profit is accounted for at the end
of each year after determination of the actual rate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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4.12

4.13

414

Staff retirement benefit
Defined contribution plan
The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees. Equal monthly

contributions @ 8.33% of the basic salary are made to the fund both by the Modaraba and
employees.

Defined benefit plan

The Modaraba operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for its eligible employees completing
prescribed period of service in accordance with service rules of the Modaraba. Provision is made for
gratuity in accordance with the requirements laid down by IAS 19. The actuarial gains and losses
are recognized in other comprehensive income when they occur. Amounts recorded in profit and
loss are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements and net interest
income (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit asset (liability) are recognized in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling to profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

liarah rentals

ljarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and when rentals become due.

Documentation charges, front-end fee and other ljarah income are recognized as income on receipt
basis. Unrealized ijarah income pertaining to non-performing ijarah is held in suspense account,
where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations (PR).

Murabaha transaction

Profit on Murabaha transaction is recognized over the period the payment becomes due. The
unearned portion is reflected as deferred Murabaha income.

Profit on musharikah arrangement is recognized under the effective interest rate, based on the
amount outstanding.

Profit on bank deposit

Return on bank deposits are recognized on accrual basis, using effective interest rate method.
Capital gain or losses on sale of investment

Capital gain / loss on investment is recognized on sale of the respective investments.

Dividend income

Dividend income on equity instruments is recognized when the right to receive the same is
established.

Commission income

Commission income is recoanized on accrual basis.

Trade date accounting

All 'regular way' purchases and sales of quoted equity securities are recognized on the trade date
i.e. the date that the Modaraba commits to purchase/sell the asset. 'Regular way' purchases or

sales of quoted investments require delivery within three working days after the transaction date
as per stock exchange regulations.

Profit distribution and appropriations

Profit distribution and appropriation to reserves are recognized as liability in the financial
statements in the period in which these are approved. Transfer to statutory reserve and any of the
mandatory appropriations, as may be required by law, are recognized in the period to which these
relate.
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415 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is made on taxable income at the prevailing rates of tax after taking
into account tax credits available, if any. The income of non-trading modarabas is exempt from tax
provided that not less than 90% of their profits are distributed to the certificate-holders as
reduced by amount transferred to a mandatory reserve as required under the provisions of the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) are
distributed to the certificate holders.

Deferred

The Modaraba accounts for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent, if it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Earninas per certificate

Earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the year by weighted
average number of certificates outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per certificate is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders by taking into
account the conversion of any diluted potential ordinary certificate.

417 Seament reportina

As per IFRS 8 - 'Operating Segments', operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting used by the chief operating decision maker. The chief executive officer
of the management company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers
the business to have a single operating segment. The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are

based on a single integrated investment strategy and the Modaraba's performance is evaluated on
an overall basis.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 50



MITED,
o
&

s,

s SERVig,

o)
Yevmina

First Punjab Modaraba

(bSP'SL8'SSS 'S 1 0Z0T 2UNF 0€) LOY'LYY'LLY 'SH O3 SJUNOWIe 3SN Ul N113S 318 ey} S}aSse paterdaidap AlIng O (3502) Junowe buikLie) ssoi0 sy L

yLw

[4%]

J9AIB US3Q J0U sey Jesodsip yoes JO 11e}ap ‘S|esodsip 4O Jaquinu 3b.1e] JO MIIA Ul ISASMOH "yedJel| JO uoijeulusal / Alidxs 193je uoijeizobau ybnoiyy pasodsip s3asse sy} Juasaldal sisysuel] |'|'g

580'606'605 66¥'269'1C - - 667'269'LC ¥89'¢21'0¢9  (LL0'9z8'6¥L)  991/G8'96  0£5¢60'689 89C05//91l ($$6'¢88'c0)  060°CLZZE  ZW0SVZO0'L
wiay Jad sy Lr6'671'0Y - - - - £86'190v  (LSL'1S1'L) £51'818'6L £85'S6¢'LL $Z6'LT Y9 (008'SLL'6) 6vC'vT8'6y  SL'SOL'YT $12npo.d Jawnsuod
wia} Jad sy - - - - - #09'255'sL - - #09'255°¢L #09'255°¢L - - 09'255°sL 1eIdlle BUSSS)
wiay Jad sy LoL'192'2LS £6$'7OLL - - £6S'7OLL L0L'SZ8'2LL  (ST9'STO'0OY)  LL8'W60'L9  606'SSL'0SL 665061155 (oLL'21L'sw) 9¢5'022'0LT  $£8'/89'V6S APIYdA
wiey Jad sy SY0'861'L6 Z01'$65'0C - - Z0l'S65'0C  966'¢89'0TF  (629'879'Z0L)  L6L'YY6'6 PSH'88E LS 1'SLL'BES (F9¢'0S¥'Oll)  S0£'890L 00Z'£51'Ty9 Assuiyoew pue Jueld

L (SOOANMY) == === === m o m o s m o
ey 0T0T3UNrOg  0ZOT3UNMOS o\, “SPASWIOL 6lOT ANl 0Zoz aunr 0g Jaysuei] Jea 3y ioy  6LOZ AINf L 0z0zZ dunf 0g Lajsuel] SUoIPPY 6L0z AInr L vondiasaq
uonyeaidag je sy je sy lesianay je sy je sy abueyd je sy je sy je sy
3NTVA
5008 1IN AINFWHIVAWI NOILVID3¥d3a 1509
0z0Z

1S9'6£4°05Y 6626991 - (000'000'S] _ 66V£691C _ BILLOIT Y95 (£86120's6l) _ ZLOGLLLZL __ ¥89'£CL 959 B898'¢Ss 10l (665116'9¢C) 66155506 89C 0SLZ9L'L
wieliedsy  Z18',£9'89 - - - - 9z6'osL'sy  (9€£€°LL112) 6LT'TSTTY  £86'190'vT 8cL'vLL'sIL  (9LL'618'LT) 065'78S'LL  YTE'LLT'YY s12npoud Jawnsuod
wisy Jad sy - - - - - 09'25S'sL - - $09°2sS'sL $09°2sS'sL - - $09°2sS'sL eIdlje BUSSID)
wieyaedsy  6¥9'LSH'96T L6S'VOL'L - - L6E'VOL'L €16°'SEL'PPL  (9€5'780°LOL)  8PE'€66'L9  LOL'ST8'LLL 656°'L6T'ThY  (6¥2'SO0'LZL)  609°TIL'TL 665°061'LSS SPIYIA
wieliedsy  06L'vrE’s8 Z0L'€65°SL - (000°000°S)  ZOL'S6S°0T  SLZ'L6L'09E  (LLL'T9L'OL) 06£'698'0L  966'€89°0TY £9S'82L'19%  (¥£S'980°8L)  000'0¥O’L LPL'SLL'8SS Ataujydew pue jueld

||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| A d r.v - g
lozaunrog  120T3UNros | oo, JSPASWI0} 0Z0T Anry 1zozaunr og o Jespdyiioy  ozozAinri 120z dunr og — SuoIPPY ozoz Ainr L uondaseq
jesy jesy 1eSIdAdYy jesy jesy wm._dr_u jesy jesy jesy
ANTVA
%008 L3N ANIWHIVAWI NOILVID3¥d3a 1S02
1202
sjasse yedel| S
126'910'¢lS ¥8Z'pST'eSY
9¢8'/0L'S £69'V18'T (41 9SN UMO Ul S}asSY
S80'606'605  159'6£¥'0SH 1's S39SSE Yeuel|
saadny saadny S}osse paxiy a|qipbue] S

0ZOZdUNr 0  LZOZ dunr O 910N

Annual Report 2021 / Page 51



First Punjab Modaraba

7%,
2
=
5
]
S

ASERVIG

>

o)
Wevmina

5.2 Assetsin own use

2021
COST DEPRECIATION NBV
As at As at As at Charge As at As at Depreciation
Description Additions Disposal Disposal
1July 2020 30 June 2021 1July 2020 for the Year 30 June 2021 30 June 2021 Rate
.................................................................................... (Rupees) =====mccemmcmcccaccnccccceaae,
Office Equipment 2,630,640 439,245 (126,990) 2,942,895 2,155,057 236,809 (126,990) 2,264,876 678,019 15% & 30%
Furniture & Fixtures 2,358,733 34,400 (194,133) 2,199,000 1,361,956 232,209 (194,133) 1,400,032 798,967 15%
Vehicles 2,174,400 154,800 (69,900) 2,259,300 538,924 450,426 (67,697) 921,653 1,337,647 20%
7,163,773 628,445 (391,023) 7,401,195 4,055,937 919,443 (388,820) 4,586,560 2,814,633
2020
COST DEPRECIATION NBV
b ot As at Additi oI ) As at As at Charge DI _ As at As at Depreciation
escription 1July 2019 rtions ISPOSEL 20 June 2020 1July 2019 for the Year ISPOSEL 30 June 2020 30 June 2020 Rate
......................................................................................................................... (Rupees) --
Office Equipment 2,585,910 44,730 - 2,630,640 1,862,471 292,586 - 2,155,057 475,583 15% & 30%
Furniture & Fixtures 1,976,956 381,777 - 2,358,733 1,127,236 234,720 - 1,361,956 996,777 15%
Vehicles 2,174,400 - - 2,174,400 409,358 129,566 - 538,924 1,635,476 20%
6,737,266 426,507 - 7,163,773 3,399,065 656,872 - 4,055,937 3,107,836

5.2.1 The Gross Carrying amount (cost) of fully depreciated assets that are still in use amounts to Rs. 1,946,371 (30 June 2020 : Rs. 1,459,609).

5.2.2 The Gross Carrying amount (cost) of assets disposed off during the year amounts to Rs. 391,023 (30 June 2020 : Nil).
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Note 2021 2020

6 Intangible Assets Rupees Rupees
Cost 2,495,000 1,295,000
Amortization 6.1 (2,092,814) (1,295,000)
Carrying Amount 402,186 -
Balance as at 1 July 2020 1,295,000 1,295,000
Additions 1,200,000 -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 2,495,000 1,295,000

6.1 Amortization
Balance as at 1 July 2020 (1,295,000) (1,295,000)
Amortization for the year 31 (797,814) -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (2,092,814) (1,295,000)
Rate of amortization 20% - 66.67% 20%

7 Investment in subsidiary

As a result of Stock Exchange (Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration) Act 2012, the Modaraba acquired
Trading Rights Entitlement Certificate (TREC) and the subsidiary has been setup to undertake brokerage business and
thereby utilize the TREC. The Modaraba obtained permission from SECP vide letter dated October 21, 2016 to form a
wholly owned subsidiary to undertake brokerage business and the subsidiary was incorporated on November 29, 2016.
During the year, total investment in subsidiary remained at Rs. 76,500,000 (June 2020: Rs. 76,500,000).

Note 2021 2020
8 Long term musharikah investment - secured Rupees Rupees
Long term musharikah investment 8.1 582,555,541 650,894,432
Less: Current portion of long term musharikah investment 13 (361,621,163) (422,480,205)
220,934,378 228,414,227

8.1 The profit charged on these facilities ranged from 9.32% to 19.98% per annum (June 2020: 8.55% to 22.55% per
annum). These facilities are secured by way of personal guarantees and mortgage of properties.

21021 21020

9 Long term morabaha investment - secured Rupees Rupees
Long term morabaha investment 9.1 9,008,220 21,619,598
Add: Unearned morabaha income - 2,077,112
9,008,220 23,696,710
Less: Current portion of long term morabaha investment 13 (9,008,220) (12,489,038)
- 1,207,672
Less: Current portion of unearned morabaha income 13 - (2,386,568)
- 8,821,104
9.1 These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation and pledge of stocks, personal guarantees and

demand promissory notes. The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 8.50% to 19.53% per annum (2020 :
8.50% to 23%).

Note 2021 2020
10 Long term deposits Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 101 203,444 203,444

10.1 Represents non interest bearing security deposit paid to LESCO and Central Depository Company.
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Note 2021 2020
n Deferred tax Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax asset 1.1 64,398,663 64,398,663
11 This represents deferred tax asset created against brought forward losses and depreciation & amortization expense

available for use in future. The management is confident that sufficient taxable profits will be available to set off
these losses. Further, the management does not intend to avail exemption under clause 100 of Part 1 of Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

The aggregate deferred tax asset available to the Modaraba for set off against future taxable profits as at 30 June
2021 amounted to Rs. 183.16 million (30 June 2020: Rs. 150.92 million). Of these, deferred tax asset aggregating Rs.
64.40 million (30 June 2020: Rs 64.40 million) have been recognized in the financial statements.

Expiry of business losses, depreciation and alternate corporate tax is as follows:

Tax year Nature 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

2026 Business loss 22,289,062 22,232,390
Unlimited Depreciation 55,084,521 24,378,509
2024 Alternate corporate tax 9,816,975 9,816,975
2025 Alternate corporate tax 16,739,766 16,739,766
2026 Alternate corporate tax 3,489,927 3,489,927
2027 Alternate corporate tax 4,016,478 4,016,478
2028 Alternate corporate tax 4,711,236 4,711,236
2029 Alternate corporate tax 1,136,970 1,136,970

2030 Alternate corporate tax - -

2031 Alternate corporate tax 1,477,096 -
41,388,448 39,911,352

Note 2021 2020
12 Short term morabaha investment-secured Rupees Rupees

Short term morabaha Investment 121 486,122,013 521,591,548
Add: Unearned morabaha income 1,158,017 4,515,908
487,280,030 526,107,456
Less: Provision for doubtful morabaha investment 12.2 (235,561,379) (235,561,379)
251,718,651 290,546,077
121 These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation and pledge of stocks, personal guarantees and

demand promissory notes. The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 11.93% to 19.90% per annum (2020:
16.29% to 19.45% per annum).

Note 2021 2020
12.2 Provision for doubtful morabaha investment Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 235,561,379 235,561,379
Additions during the year - -
Reversals during the year - -
Closing balance 235,561,379 235,561,379
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13.1

13.2

14

14.1

14.2

15

16

Current maturity of long term investment

Current portion of long term musharikah investment
Less: Provision against musharika investment

Current portion of long term morabaha investment
Add: Unearned morabaha income
Less: Provision against morabaha investment

Provision against musharikah investment

Opening balance
Additions during the year
Specific provision

Reversed during the year
Closing balance

Provision for doubtful morabaha investment
Opening balance

Charge during the year

Closing balance

ljarah rental receivables

ljarah rental receivable
Less: Provision against ijarah rental receivable

Provision against ijarah rental receivable

Opening balance
Additions in provision during the year
Additions in suspension during the year

Reversal of suspension during the year
Reversal of provision during the year

Closing balance

Future ljarah rentals receivable

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
8 361,621,163 422,480,205
131 (15,761,143) (15,761,143)
345,860,020 406,719,062
9 9,008,220 12,489,038
9 - 2,386,568
13.2 (8,800,000) (8,800,000)
208,220 6,075,606
346,068,240 412,794,668
15,761,143 8,709,526
-l 10,561,330 |
- 10,561,330
- (3,509,713)
15,761,143 15,761,143
8,800,000 8,800,000
8,800,000 8,800,000
368,478,892 428,484,372
14.1 (132,728,357) (155,596,948)
235,750,535 272,887,424
155,596,948 155,303,248
787,464 293,700
8,707,278 -
28.1 (18,407,811) -
(13,955,522) -
(32,363,333) -
132,728,357 155,596,948

Aggregate amount of future ijarah rentals receivable on the basis of agreements executed up to 30 June 2021 are as

follows:

Up to one year
Above one year and up to five year

Development Properties - Land

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
183,198,769 175,733,168
171,358,513 266,958,991
354,557,282 442,692,159

The diversification of business model, utilizing multi-purpose status of the Modaraba through construction and
development activity has been envisioned as a business prospect. The Modaraba has obtained approval of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity by
insertion of a new clause for this purpose in its Prospectus. The work on new business segment has been started and
two plots have been acquired while more are under process of acquisition, for a project comprising construction of

small houses.

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Profit receivable
- Morabaha investment
- Musharikah investment

Prepayments
Advances
Non-banking assets
Other receivables

Less: Provision for other receivables

16.1
16.2

16.3

20,454,798 10,535,511
43,453,092 36,979,801
63,907,890 47,515,312
4,952,103 3,342,702
2,795,704 2,807,424
8,486,298 31,782,500
106,929,156 113,232,181
187,071,151 198,680,118
(11,128,292) (11,128,292)
175,942,859 187,551,827
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16.1

16.1.1

16.2

16.2.1

16.3

17

171

17.2

17.3

17.4

18

18.1

18.2

Note 2021 2020
Morabaha profit receivable Rupees Rupees
Morabaha profit receivable 47,984,578 37,656,836
Less: Income transferred to suspense 16.1.1 (27,529,780) (27,121,325)
20,454,798 10,535,511
Income transferred to suspense
Opening balance 27,121,325 27,121,325
Addition during the year 408,455
Closing balance 27,529,780 27,121,325
Musharikah profit receivable
Musharikah profit receivable 64,907,268 56,869,751
Less: Income transferred to suspense 16.2.1 (21,454,176) (19,889,950)
43,453,092 36,979,801
Income transferred to suspense
Opening balance 19,889,950 16,851,729
Addition during the year 28.3 12,566,330 6,555,237
Reversal of suspension during the year 28.3 (11,002,104) (3,517,016)
Closing balance 21,454,176 19,889,950
Provision against other receivables
Opening balance 11,128,292 11,128,292
Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 11,128,292 11,128,292
Cash and bank balances
Cash at banks
- Current accounts 171 59,368,191 -
- Deposit accounts 17.2817.3 52,040,602 24,791,967
- Savings accounts 17.2&17.3 49,509 49,509
- Current account with State Bank of Pakistan 17.4 233,586 65,249
111,691,888 24,906,725
Cash in hand 56,537 196,191
111,748,425 25,102,916

The balance of Rs. 59.36 million (2020: Rs.3.89 million) is maintained with The Bank of Punjab (the holding company

of the Modaraba's Management Company).

Under the terms and conditions for the issuance of certificates of musharikah (both long and short term), the
Modaraba is required to maintain a Redemption Reserve Fund equal to at least 5% of the contribution against
Certificates of Musharikah Finance received, which may be utilized for redemption purposes.

The rate of profit on deposit and saving accounts ranges between 4.25% to 8.94% per annum (2020: 4.25% to 13.00%

per annum).

This account has been opened for payment of online charges of the Credit Information Bureau of State Bank of Pakista

Note 2021 2020
Certificate capital Rupees Rupees
Authorized certificate capital
50,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rs.10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
----- (Number of certificates)---- Rupees Rupees
20,000,000 20,000,000 Cetifcates of Rs. 10/- fully 200,000,000 200,000,000
paid on cash
14,020,000 14,020,000  Cetifcates of Rs. 10/- issued as 140,200,000 140,200,000
bonus certificates
34,020,000 34,020,000 340,200,000 340,200,000

As at 30 June 2021, The Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (the management company) held 13,320,694

(2020: 13,320,694 certificates of Rs. 10 each.
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Note 2021 2020
Reserves Rupees Rupees
Capital reserve
Statutory reserve 19.1 218,176,678 216,692,528
Revenue reserves
Accumulated loss (413,657,696) (419,594,296)
(195,481,018) (202,901,768)

This represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan requiring modaraba to transfer not less than 20% and not more than 50% of its
profits after tax in such manner that reserves equal 100% of the paid up capital. Thereafter a sum not less than 5% of
the profit after tax is to be set aside.

Note 2021 2020
Movement in statutory reserve Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 216,692,528 216,692,528
Transfer from profit 1,484,150 -
218,176,678 216,692,528
Long term security deposits
Long term security deposits against ljarah 131,545,269 144,656,348
Less: Current maturity of security deposits 23 (88,769,360) (83,316,089)
42,775,909 61,340,259
Deferred morabaha income
Deferred morabaha income 12 1,158,017 6,593,020
Less: Current maturity of deferred morabaha income (1,158,017) (2,386,568)
- 4,206,452

These represent receivables against morabaha transactions on deferred payment basis at profit margin which ranges
from 8.50% to 19.53% per annum (2020 : 8.50% to 23%).

Note 2021 2020
Long term musharikah finance secured Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 648,738,613 1,223,621,569
Additions during the year 4,425,797,407 2,378,250,696
Less: Paid during the year (4,539,407,246) (2,953,133,652)
(113,609,839) (574,882,956)
221 535,128,774 648,738,613

The Modaraba has availed musharikah finance facilities from The Bank of Punjab having approved limits of Rs. 1,585
million (2020: Rs. 1,585 million) and tenor of 3 years. The facilities have expired on 26 October 2021 and are under
process of renewal for another 3 years. These facilities are secured by way of first pari passu charge over present and
future fixed assets of Modaraba for amount of Rs. 860 million, first pari passu charge over present and future current
assets of Modaraba for an amount of Rs. 1,040 million and ranking charge over present and future current assets for
an amount of Rs. 860 million. The estimated share of profit payable on musharikah facilities is 3 month Kibor plus 25
bps per annum (2020: 3 month Kibor per annum).

Note 2021 2020
Current maturity of non current liabilities Rupees Rupees
Current maturity of long term security deposits 231 88,769,360 83,316,089
Current maturity of deferred morabaha income 21 1,158,017 2,386,568
89,927,377 85,702,657

This includes security deposit amounting to Rs. 70.90 million (2020: Rs.82.70 million) against those ijarah where the
customers have defaulted payment of rentals and the Modaraba has filed suits for recovery.

Note 2021 2020

Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 1,013,549,225 445,518,493
Add: Issued during the year 552,368 2,410,030,732
Add: Re- issued during the year 1,000,000,000 105,000,000
Less: Redeemed during the year (1,000,000,000) (1,947,000,000)

552,368 568,030,732
Closing balance 241 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225

The Certificates of Musharaka have been issued with a maturity of upto 3 years. The share of profit payable ranges
from 5.35% to 13.60% per annum (2020: 5.35% to 13.75%).
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Note 2021 2020
Profit payable Rupees Rupees
Musharikah finance 1,170,271 18,685,681
Redeemable capital 12,591,734 19,056,657
23,762,005 37,742,338
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses 26.1 4,906,528 3,859,647
Tax deducted at source 1,289,173 817,321
Advances against ijarah / morabaha / musharikah 42,759,127 57,114,805
Other payables 29,761,933 16,145,735
78,716,761 77,937,508

This includes amount in respect of gratuity payable to employees amounting to Rs. 4.51 million (2020: 3.66 million).

Contingencies and commitments

Contingencies

The assessing officer, while finalizing assessments for the years 1997-98 and 1998-99, made add backs out of profit
and loss account. The Modaraba had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) (CIT-(A)), who
has rejected the appeals. The Modaraba has filed an appeal, against the order of CIT-(A), before the honorable Income
Tax Appellate Tribunal, which has been decided in favor of Modaraba, however Income Tax Department has filed
appeal before honorable Lahore High Court. Modaraba management company expects a favorable outcome of the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, (the Ordinance) for tax year 2003 while rejecting the exemption claimed from tax under Clause 100 of Part | of
Second Schedule to the Ordinance and made additions on account of provision for bad debts, which resulted in a tax
liability of Rs. 27.410 million. The Modaraba filed a rectification application under section 221 of the Ordinance for
reducing the tax rate from 35% to 25%, resultantly the rectification order passed by the tax department and reduced
the tax liability to Rs. 14.580 million. The Modaraba also filed an appeal before the CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2003
against the order of ACIR. In this regard, after hearing of the appeal, the CIR (Appeals) by accepting the claim of
exemption has issued a favorable order to the Modaraba while deleting the tax liability of Rs. 14,580,110 vide order No.
31 dated 27 June 2009. The income tax department has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
against the order of CIR (Appeals) which was decided in favor of the Modaraba. The Income Tax Department has filed
reference in High Court against decision of Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for adjudication.
Modaraba management company expects a favorable outcome of the case.

Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, (the Ordinance) for tax year 2005 while rejecting the exemption claimed from tax under Clause 100 of Part | of
Second Schedule to the Ordinance in an arbitrary manner and assessing the taxable income at Rs. 49.85 million and
tax liability at Rs. 17.67 million. The Modaraba filed a rectification application under section 221 of the Ordinance for
reducing the tax rate from 35% to 25%. Further, the Modaraba has filed an appeal before the CIR (Appeals) for tax year
2005 against this order. In this regard, after hearing of the appeal, the CIR (Appeals) by accepting the claim of
exemption has issued a favorable order to the Modaraba while deleting the tax liability of Rs. 17.67 million.

The income tax department has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against the order of CIR
(Appeals) which was decided in favor of the Modaraba. The Income Tax Department has filed reference in High Court
against decision of Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for adjudication. Modaraba management
company expects a favorable outcome of the case.

Legal suits against Modaraba

Suit for rendition of account Rs. 22.145 million filed by a defaulter against the Modaraba. The suit is pending in
Honorable Banking Court. The management is of the view that case has no merit and would be disposed off in favor of
the Modaraba.

Aggregate amount of guarantee given by a bank on behalf of the Modaraba in respect of the payment guarantee
amounts to Nil (2020: Rs. Nil).

Commitments
ljarah commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. Nil (2020: Nil).

Morabaha commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. Nil (2020 : Nil).

Musharikah commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. 22.29 million. (2020: Rs.10.85
million).
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31.1

31.2

Operating income

Income from ijarah rentals

ljarah income

Add: Reversal of rentals suspended
Less: Addition of rentals suspended
Less: Depreciation on ijarah assets

Income from morabaha financing

Morabaha investment
Less: Suspension

Income from diminishing musharaka financing

Musharikah investment
Add: Reversals of rentals suspended
Less: Rentals suspended

Gain on disposal of assets

Gain on diposal of non banking assets
Gain on disposal of owned assets
Gain on disposal of ljarah assets

Other income

Profit on bank deposits
Processing fee

Cheque return charges

Gain on settlement of musharikah
Gain on settlement of morabaha
Miscellaneous income

Rebate income from Takaful

Administrative expenses

Salaries and benefits

Traveling and conveyance
Depreciation - owned asset
Amortization of Intangible Assets
Legal and professional

Printing and stationary

Insurance

Fee and subscription

Auditor's remuneration

Repair and maintenance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Power and utilities
Entertainment expenses
Advertisement

Telephone and postage
Corporate expenses

Rent rates and taxes

Selling and marketing expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
162,026,751 161,087,010
14.1 18,407,811 -
8,707,278 -
(121,115,017) (96,857,165)
68,026,823 64,229,845
3,433,160 11,232,932
16.1.1 (408,455) (986,728)
3,841,615 10,246,204
65,403,963 113,846,468
16.2.1 11,002,104 3,517,016
16.2.1 (12,566,330) (6,555,237)
63,839,737 110,808,247
1,900,000 1,333,000
25,297 -
1,815,709 767,302
3,741,006 2,100,302
3,266,467 3,113,493
1,349,031 1,743,356
- 17,500
5,049,915 1,490,539
22,024 740,508
1,378,020 1,132,430
2,507,717 2,461,757
13,573,174 10,699,583
29,411,235 27,638,711
146,018 230,168
52 919,444 656,872
6.1 797,814 -
1,252,327 709,946
720,804 796,794
2,345,307 968,951
1,090,801 1,440,664
31.2 585,000 585,000
1,693,972 1,213,149
229,792 157,494
1,073,405 911,386
529,562 665,410
194,000 58,768
593,059 624,615
545,334 514,646
21,325 6,040
644,649 1,085,442
251,004 109,650
43,044,852 38,373,706

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.913 million (2020: Rs. 0.887 million) on account
contribution and Rs.1.130 million (2020: Rs. 1.656 million) in respect of gratuity payable to employees.

Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review and others
Out of pocket expenses

of provident fund

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
300,000 300,000
175,000 175,000
110,000 110,000
585,000 585,000
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Note 2021 2020
Finance cost Rupees Rupees
Financial charges on musharikah 47,060,064 124,632,929
Financial charges on redeemable capital 71,997,139 82,875,907
Bank charges 147,695 167,213
119,204,898 207,676,049

Management fee

Management fee is payable to Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited. During the current year the management
has decided not to pay out the dividend to certificate holders from the current year net annual profit therefore, as per
SECP circular the management cannot pay the management fee to Management Company.

Note 2021 2020
34 Taxation Rupees Rupees
Current Tax
- Current year 1,519,913 -
Deferred
- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
1,519,913 -
35 Earning per certificate
35.1 Basic

Basic earnings per certificate are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of

certificates outstanding during the year as follows:

Profit for the year

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
7,420,750 (55,310,891)
34,020,000 34,020,000

Weighted average number of ordinary certificates

Earning per certificate

35.2 Diluted

0.22

(1.63)

No figure for diluted earnings per certificate has been presented as the Modaraba has not issued any instruments

which would have an impact on earnings per certificate when exercised.

36 Transactions with related parties

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise of The Bank of Punjab, Punjab Modaraba Services (Private)
Limited and Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited. Transactions with related parties and associated undertakings
other than remuneration and benefits to key management personnel under the term of employment are as follows:

36.1 Balances outstanding at the end of year

36.1.1 The Bank of Punjab (Holding company of Modaraba's Note

Management Company)

Musharikah finances

Profit payable on musharikah finances
Certificates of musharikah

Profit payable on certificates of musharikah

36.1.2 Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited (Subsidiary Company)

Investment in shares

36.2 Transactions during the year

36.2.1 The Bank of Punjab (Holding company of
Modaraba's Management Company)

Bank charges

Profit charged on finances
Profit charged on certificates of Musharikah
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Rupees Rupees
535,128,774 648,738,613
1,170,271 18,685,681
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
11,564,368 17,742,455
76,500,000 76,500,000
147,695 167,213
47,060,064 124,632,929
71,370,373 80,752,732
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38.1

38.1.1

Remuneration of officers and executives

2021
Executives Other Total
employees

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Remuneration 17,176,266 212,089 17,388,355
House rent allowance 5,416,811 84,836 5,501,647
Utility allowance 1,351,743 21,209 1,372,952
Medical allowance 1,351,743 21,209 1,372,952
Provident fund contribution 913,476 - 913,476
Gratuity Fund 1,126,881 - 1,126,881
Expenses reimbursed 1,734,973 - 1,734,973

29,071,893 339,342 29,411,235
Number of employees at the year end 37 2 39
Average no of employees 37 2 39
The chief financial officer has been provided a vehicle on ljarah.

2020
Officers Other Total
employees

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Remuneration 14,801,292 345,402 15,146,694
House rent allowance 4,928,678 138,162 5,066,840
Utility allowance 2,252,865 34,542 2,287,407
Medical allowance 1,024,673 34,542 1,059,215
Provident fund contribution 771,418 16,428 787,846
Gratuity Fund 1,087,344 - 1,087,344
Expenses reimbursed 2,222,148 - 2,222,148

27,088,418 569,076 27,657,494
Number of employees at the year end 30 3 33
Average number of employees 30 3 33

Financial instruments

The Modaraba has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors of the management company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

Modaraba's risk management framework.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Modaraba by
failing to discharge an obligation. The risk is generally limited to the carrying to principal amounts and accrued profit
thereon, if any. The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk
management policies and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations. The carrying amount of the following
financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure at the reporting date:

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Bank balances 17 111,691,888 24,906,725
Musharikah investment - net 8 566,794,398 635,133,289
Long term morabaha investment - net 208,220 14,896,710
Short term morabaha investment - net 12 251,718,651 290,546,077
ljarah rental receivable - net 14 235,750,535 272,887,424
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 16 159,708,754 149,619,201
Long term deposits 203,444 203,444

Bank balances

1,326,075,890

1,388,192,870

The Modaraba kept its surplus funds with banks having good credit rating. Currently the surplus funds are kept with
banks having medium to long term rating from AAA to AA+ and short term rating from A1+ to Al. Credit risk rating of
the banks are as follows:

Banks Short Term Long Term Agency
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA / VIS
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al A PACRA / VIS
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA / VIS
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited Al A PACRA / VIS
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38.1.2 Description of collateral held

The Modaraba's ijarah are secured against ijarah assets and personal guarantees. In few ijarah additional collateral is
also obtained in the form of mortgaged property.

Morabaha investments are secured by way of personal guarantees of the directors, pledge of stocks, mortgage of
properties and charge on the assets varying from case to case.

Musharikah investments are secured against musharikah assets, personal guarantees and mortgage of properties.

38.1.3 Aging Analysis of Morabaha profit receivable

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
----------------------------- Rupees--=-====m--mmmmmm e

Not Yet Due - - - -
Less than 3 months 20,454,798 20,454,798 - -
3 months to 6 months - OAEM 1,395,183 - 1,395,183 1,395,183
6 months to 1year - Substandard - - - -
1to 1.5 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 1.5 years - Loss 26,134,597 - 26,134,597 26,134,597

47,984,578 20,454,798 27,529,780 27,529,780

2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
-------------------------------- Rupees-----=-cmcmmmmmmice -

Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 3,586 3,586 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 10,531,925 - 10,531,925 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 986,728 - 986,728 986,728
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 26,134,597 - 26,134,597 26,134,597

37,656,836 3,586 37,653,250 27,121,325

Suspension is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of requirements given under the Prudential Regulations for

Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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38.1.4 Aging Analysis of Morabaha investment

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provision
----------------------------- Rupees--====--mmcmmcc e
Not Yet Due - - - -
Less than 3 months 24,016,220 24,016,220 - -
3 months to 6 months - OAEM - - - -
6 months to 1year - Substandard - - - -
1to 1.5 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 1.5 years - Loss 471,114,013 - 471,114,013 244,361,379
495,130,233 24,016,220 471,114,013 244,361,379
2020
Past due Non-classified Classified Provision
Total
———————————————————————————————— Rupees-----------mmmm
Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 59,397,134 59,397,134 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 12,700,000 - 12,700,000 -
1to 2 years - Substandard - - - -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 471,114,013 - 471,114,013 244,361,379
543,211,146 59,397,134 483,814,013 244,361,379

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential Regulations
for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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38.1.5 Aging Analysis of ljarah receivable

Past due

Not Yet Due

Less than 3 months

3 months to 6 months - OAEM

6 months to 1year - Substandard
1to 1.5 years - Doubtful

More than 1.5 years - Loss

Past due

Not yet due

Less than 6 months
6 to 12 months - OAEM

1to 2 years - Substandard
2 to 3 years - Doubtful

More than 3 years - Loss

2021
Total Non-classified  Classified Provision /
Suspension
----------------------------- Rupees--======ncmcccccccccmcccccccann-
32,655,035 32,655,035 - -
501,254 - 501,254 -
96,218 - 96,218 -
87,676 - 87,676 -
335,138,709 - 335,138,709 132,728,357
368,478,892 32,655,035 335,823,857 132,728,357
2020
Non-classified Classified Provision /
Total Suspension
—————————————————————————————— Rupees--------------oomomm

45,137,205 45,137,205 - -
61,953 - 61,953 -
98,946 - 98,946 -
103,015 - 103,015 -
383,083,253 - 383,083,253 155,303,248
428,484,372 45,137,205 383,347,167 155,303,248

Suspension is recognized by Modaraba on the basis of requirements given under the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas
and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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38.1.6 Aging Analysis of Musharikah profit receivable

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
----------------------------- Rupees--======nmmccccccccmcccccccannnn
Not Yet Due - - - -
Less than 3 months 41,707,712 41,707,712 - -
3 months to 6 months - OAEM 16,069,782 - 16,069,782 14,324,403
6 months to 1year - Substandard - -
More than 1.5 years - Loss 7,120,917 - 7,120,917 7,120,915
64,907,269 41,707,712 23,199,557 21,454,176
2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
—————————————————————————————— Rupees---------------cmmmm -
Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 18,376,667 18,376,667 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 151,778 - 151,778 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 184,104 - 184,104 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 129,218 - 129,218 -
More than 3 years - Loss 38,027,984 - 38,027,984 19,889,950
56,869,751 18,376,667 38,493,084 19,889,950

Suspension is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of requirements given under the Prudential Regulations for
Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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38.1.7 Aging Analysis of Musharikah investment

Past due

Not Yet Due

Less than 3 months

3 months to 6 months - OAEM

6 months to 1year - Substandard
1to 1.5 years - Doubtful

More than 1.5 years - Loss

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on
Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.

Past due

Not yet due

Less than 6 months

6 to 12 months - OAEM
1to 2 years - Substandard
2 to 3 years - Doubtful

More than 3 years - Loss

2021
Total Non-classified Classified Provision
----------------------------- Rupees---=====mmmmmmmmccmc e
510,581,270 510,581,270 - -
9,193,845 - 9,193,845 -
2,514,420 - 2,514,420 -
1,623,264 - 1,623,264 -
9,742,742 - 9,742,742 -
48,900,000 - 48,900,000 15,761,143
582,555,541 510,581,270 71,974,271 15,761,143

the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential Regulations for

2020
Total Non-classified Classified Provision
—————————————————————————————— Rupees----------mmmmmmi

509,844,905 509,844,905 - -

36,240,675 36,240,675 - -
40,692,536 - 40,692,536 10,561,332

6,816,317 - 6,816,317 -

8,400,000 - 8,400,000 -
48,900,000 - 48,900,000 5,199,813
650,894,432 546,085,580 104,808,853 15,761,145

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential Regulations for

Modaraba and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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38.1.8 The Modaraba manages credit risk and its concentration through diversification of activities to avoid undue concentration

of risks with individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Modaraba has established exposure

Break down of credit risk exoosure bv class of business as at 30 June 2021 is as follows:

Textile Spinning and Composite
Sugar and Allied

Electric Goods

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Paper and Board

Food and Allied

Individuals

Jute

Oil and Gas

Miscellaneous

Aviation and transport
Engineering, Steel & Construction

Cement

Bank and NBFI's

Textile Spinning and Composite
Sugar and Allied

Electric Goods

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Paper and Board

Food and Allied

Individuals

Jute

Oiland Gas

Miscellaneous

Aviation and transport
Engineering, Steel & Construction

Cement

2021
Assets Morabaha Musharikah
ljarah investment investment Total % age
----------------------------- Rupees----===-cmcmmmmmmccccec e e,
35,464,801 172,178,735 2,804,238 210,447,774 13.77%
- 32,000,000 - 32,000,000 2.09%
100,000 93,023,643 - 93,123,643 6.09%
483,054 4,720,170 13,787,485 18,990,709 1.24%
100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
2,740,721 - 33,956,685 36,697,406 2.40%
88,784,540 88,616,222 82,090,641 259,491,403 16.98%
- - - - 0.00%
- - 27,539,253 27,539,253 1.80%
30,965,233 37,091,463 21,534,191 89,590,887 5.86%
247,319,771 - 387,043,445 634,363,216 41.51%
44,481,531 67,500,000 10,726,517 122,708,048 8.03%
- - 3,073,086 3,073,086 0.20%
450,439,651 495,130,233 582,555,541 1,528,125,425 100%
2020
Assets Morabaha Musharikah
ljarah investment investment Total % age
—————————————————————————————— Rupees-------------coommmmme
- - - - 0.00%
40,391,050 171,104,735 4,232,936 215,728,721 12.97%
- 32,000,000 - 32,000,000 1.92%
3,032,650 94,223,643 97,256,293 5.85%
616,347 2,720,170 25,646,217 28,982,734 1.74%
100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
5,302,655 - 39,065,855 44,368,510 2.67%
66,481,180 85,694,115 90,089,953 242,265,248 14.57%
- - - - 0.00%
- - 42,190,906 42,190,906 2.54%
44,197,874 48,674,949 39,213,306 132,086,129 7.94%
300,936,139 - 398,263,043 699,199,182 42.05%
48,851,189 67,500,000 5,854,511 122,205,700 7.35%
- - 6,337,705 6,337,705 0.38%
509,909,085 501,917,611 650,894,432 1,662,721,128 100%
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the
possibility that the Modaraba could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial liabilities as they fall due. The Modaraba'’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's
reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including profit payments:

Financial liabilities

Redeemable capital

Security deposits against ljarah
Musharikah finance

Unclaimed profit

Trade and other payables
Profit payable

Financial liabilities

Redeemable capital
Security deposits against ljarah
Musharikah finance

Unclaimed profit
Trade and other payables
Profit payable

2021
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6 to 12 1year to 2 years to
Amount cash flows or less months 2 years 5 years
................................................ Rupees--========sememmceeccc e e e e e s e e e m s m e m e m e

1,014,101,593 1,032,794,470 1,032,794,470 - - -
131,545,269 131,545,269 76,019,110 12,750,250 21,613,800 21,162,109
535,128,774 619,020,545 20,919,577 20,919,577 41,839,153 576,967,927

17,367,085 17,367,085 17,367,085 - - -

35,957,634 35,957,634 35,957,634 - - -

23,762,005 23,762,005 23,762,005 - - -
1,757,862,361 1,860,447,009 1,206,819,881 33,669,827 63,452,953 598,130,036

2020
Carrying Amount Contractual cash 6 months or less 6 to 12 months lyearto2 2yearsto >
flows years years
................................................... Rupees------------mmmm

1,013,549,225 1,032,605,776 1,032,605,776 - - -
144,656,348 144,656,348 82,886,889 429,200 25,478,950 35,861,309
648,738,613 742,547,993 23,452,345 23,452,345 46,904,690 695,643,303

17,458,341 17,458,341 17,458,341 - - -

20,822,703 20,822,703 20,822,703 - - .

37,742,338 37,742,338 37,742,338 - - -
1,882,967,568 1,995,833,499 1,214,968,392 23,881,545 72,383,640 731,504,612

38.2.1 The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of profit rates effective as at year end (and includes
both principal and profit payable thereon). The rates of profit have been disclosed in notes 22 and 24 to these financial statements.

38

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, profit rates and equity prices will affect the Modaraba's income or the value of
its holdings of financial instruments. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimize its exposure to this risk.
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38.3.1 Profit rate risk

At the reporting date, the profit rate profile of Modaraba's significant profit bearing financial instruments and the periods
in which they mature is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Effective profit rate Carrying amount
(Percentage) (Rupees)
Financial assets
Musharikah investments 9.32 -19.98 8.55-2255 566,794,398 635,133,289
Morabaha investment 8.50 - 19.90 8.50 - 23.00 250,768,854 305,442,787
Cash and bank balances 4.25 - 8.94 425-13.13 52,090,111 24,841,476
869,653,363 965,417,552
Financial liabilities
Redeemable Capital 5.35-13.60 5.35-13.75 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225
Musharikah finance 7.25-7.84 1.22 -13.85 535,128,774 648,738,613

1,549,230,367 1,662,287,838

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in profit rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit for the year by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the basis for 2021.

Profit and loss 100 bps

Increase Decrease
As at 30 June 2021
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 8,696,534 11,835,908
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (15,492,305) (16,691,400)
Net effect (6,795,771) (4,855,492)
Profit and loss 100 bps
Increase Decrease
As at 30 June 2020
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 9,654,176 (9,654,174)
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (16,622,879) 16,622,878
Net effect (6,968,703) 6,968,704

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of
the Modaraba.

38.3.2 Currencyv risk

38

39

As at 30 June 2021. there is no foreian exchanae exposure on Morabaha's balance sheet

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Modaraba's operations either internally within the Modaraba or externally
at the Modaraba's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior.
Operational risks arise from all of the Modaraba's activities.

- The Modaraba's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its
reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for certificate holders.

- The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board
of Directors of the management Company. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to
address the risks identified;

- ethical and business standards;

- risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Fair value of financial instruments

The IFRS-13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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42

43

44

Capital risk manaaement

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
Modaraba defines as net operation income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the

level of dividend payouts to certificate holders.

Reconciliation of liabilities arisina from financina activities

Balance as at Availed /

01 July 2020 Announced
Long term musharikah finance 648,738,613 4,425,797,407
Prifit payable 17,458,341 -
Redeemable capital 1,013,549,225 1,010,500,000

Repaid / Balance as at
Reedeemed 30 June 2021
(4,539,407,246) 535,128,774

(91,256) 17,367,085

(1,009,947,632) 1,014,101,593

1,679,746,179 5,436,297,407

(5,549,446,134) _ 1,566,597,452

Cash flow from operatina activities

Profit / (Loss) for the vear

Adiustments for:
Depreciation of ijarah assets
Depreciation of assets in own use
Amortization of Intagible Assets
Gain on disposal of ljarah assets
Gain on disposal of owned assets
Gain on disposal of non-banking assets
Reversal for impairment of ijarah assets
(Reversal) / Provision for musharikah investment
(Reversal) / Provision for ljara investment
Financial charges on musharikah finances
Financial charges on redeemable capital

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
8.940.663 (55.310.891)
121,115,017 96,857,165
919,444 656,872
797,814 -
(1,815,709) (767,302)
(25,297) -
(1,900,000) (1,333,000)
(5,000,000) -
- 7,051,617
(13,168,058) 293,700
47,060,064 124,632,929
71,997,139 82,875,907
219,980,414 310,267,888

Operatina profit before workina capital chanaes

Workina capital chanaes
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

228.921.077 254.956.997

Morabaha investment 41,509,917 6,251,809
Purchase of assets under ijarah arrangements (90,535,199) (327,113,090)
Investment in musharikah-net 68,338,891 215,555,198
Purchase of Software (1,200,000) -
Purchase of assets-Development Properties (6,975,000) -
Proceeds from transfer of ijarah assets 53,873,383 84,825,225
ljarah Rental Receivable - net 41,836,438 26,981,742
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 11,608,967 (78,112,706)
118.457.397 (71.611.822)
Increase / (decrease) in operatina liabilities
Security deposits - net (14,339,630) 409,455
Trade and other payables 779,253 H 16,822,664
(13.560.377) 17.232.119
Net chanaes in opberatina assets and operatina liabilities 104.897.020 (54.379.703)
Cash generated from operations 333,818,097 200,577,294
Provident fund
Size of the fund 5,256,866 4,874,516
Percentage of investments made 100% 100%
Fair value of investments made 4,400,000 4,000,000
Cost of investment made 4,400,000 4,000,000
Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the
2021 2020
(Audited) (Audited)
Investment Investment as % Investment Investment as %
of size of the of size of the
Term Deposit Receipts 4,400,000 100% 4,000,000 100%
4,400,000 100% 4,000,000 100%

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of sections 218 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Date of authorization for issue

The unconsolidated financial statements of Modaraba were approved by the Directors of Modaraba Management

Company and authorized for issue on October 29, 2021.
General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless otherwise provided.

oy iy \Vi'7¢

AW r@%&

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director Director
Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited
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Auditors’ Report to the Certificate Holders

We have audited the annexed consolidated balance sheet of First Punjab Modaraba and its
subsidiary (the Group) as at 30 June 2021 and the related consolidated profit and loss
account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement
and consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
(hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we state that
we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

These consolidated financial statements are the Modaraba management company's (Punjab
Modaraba Services (Private) Limited) responsibility who is also responsible to establish and
maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in
conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicadle in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by the Modaraba company, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) In our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Modaraba Company in
respect of First Punjab Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX| of 1980), and Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

(b) Inouropinion;

(i) the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX of
1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and are in
agreement with the books of accounts and are further in agreement with
accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes as stated in note

4.1, with which we concur;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba's
business; And
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(iiiy  the business conducted, investments made, and the expenditure incurred during
the year were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the
modaraba;

(c) Inouropinionand to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and
consolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
Rules, 1981, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Modaraba's affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the profit, its comprehensive
income its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) In our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,
1980(XVIll of 1980), was deducted by the Modaraba company and deposited in the
Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

. T

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Audit Engagement Partner: Farooq Hameed

Lahore: 30 October 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Note 2021 2020
ASSETS Rubees Rupees
Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets
- liarah assets 5.1 450,439,651 509,909,085
- Assets in own use 5.2 3,800,610 4,332,069
Intangible assets 6 7,167,912 6,765,726
Long Term Investment 7 20,533,912 19,605,539
Long term musharikah investment - secured 8 220,934,378 228,414,227
Long term morabaha investment - secured 9 - 8,821,104
Long term deposits 10 3,295,435 2,381,853
Deferred tax asset n 64,386,484 64,398,663
770.558.382 844.628.266
Current assets
Short term morabaha investment - secured 12 251,718,651 290,546,077
Current maturity of long term investment 13 346,068,240 412,794,668
ljarah rental receivable 14 235,750,535 272,887,424
Trade Receivable 16 32,655,884 8,983,643
Development properties - Land 15 6,975,000 -
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 17 209,553,424 196,617,173
Tax refund due from government 6,874,104 5,945,010
Cash and bank balances 18 140,072,304 69,445,617
1,229,668,142 1,257,219,612
TOTAL ASSETS 2,000,226,524 2,101,847,878
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorized certificate capital
50,000,000 (30 June 2020: 50,000,000) modaraba
certificates of Rs. 10 each 19 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital
34,020,000 (30 June 2020: 34,020,000) certificates of Rs. 10 191
each S. 340,200,000 340,200,000
Capital reserves 20 218,176,678 216,692,528
Fair Value Reserve 20 9,774,741 8,846,368
Revenue reserves 20 (422,177,51) (435,710,622)
145,973,908 130,028,274
Non current liabilities
Long term security deposits 21 42,775,909 61,340,259
Deferred morabaha income 22 - 4,206,452
Long term musharikah finance - secured 23 535,128,774 648,738,613
577,904,683 714,285,324
Current liabilities
Current maturity of non current liabilities 24 89,927,377 85,702,657
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured 25 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225
Profit payable 26 23,762,005 37,742,338
Trade and other payables 27 128,111,554 102,700,068
Provision for taxation 36 3,078,319 381,651
Unclaimed profit 17,367,085 17,458,341
1,276,347,933 1,257,534,280
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,000,226,524 2,101,847,878
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28

The attached notes 1to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

\ N
f‘l\ 5 f ¥ M EG \
Ny — rh VA 1/
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director Director
Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

As at 30 June 2021

Income

Income from ijarah rentals

Income from morabaha financing

Income from diminishing musharaka financing
Revenue from contract with customers

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Other income

Expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance cost

Operating loss before provision

Reversal for impairment of iiarah assets

Reversal / (provision) aaainst iiarah rentals - net

Provision for musharikah investment

Operating profit / (loss) after provision and impairment

Modaraba Company's management fee

Taxation

Profit / (loss) for the year

Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted

Note 2021 2020
Rubees Rubees

29.1 68,026,823 64,229,845
29.2 3,841,615 10,246,204
29.3 63,839,737 110,808,247
30 26,054,757 8,189,093
31 3,741,006 2,700,302
32 16,794,167 15,069,857
182,298,105 210,643,548

33 63.130.642 51.648.886
34 119,227,762 207,688,021
182,358,404 259,336,906
(60,299) (48,693,359)

5.000.000 -
13.168.058 (293.700)

- (7.051.617)

18.168.058 (7.345.317)
18,107,759 (56,038,676)

35 - -
18,107,759 (56,038,676)

36 (3.090.498) (156.992)
15,017,261 (56,195,668)

37 0.44 (1.65)

The attached notes 1to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

=

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Chief Executive

( Private ) Limited

Punjab Modaraba Services

\\‘Q}; Fl } f/

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

Ao

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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First Punjab Modaraba

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 2021 2020
Rubees Rupees
Profit / (loss) for the Year 15,017,261 (56,195,668)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 928,373 450,473
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the Year

15,945,634 (55,745,195)
The attached notes 1to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

\ .
M. _,_._:‘h.. \\ Y/ f/‘
' g W ﬂ.}
Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Profit paid on redeemable capital

Profit paid on musharikah finances

Taxes paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Dividend Income
Purchase of fixed assets in own use

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Musharikah finances-net
Redeemable capital-net

Profit distributed among the certificate holders
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
43 318,314,007 210,088,980
(78,462,062) (69,980,950)
(54,755,623) (140,557,198)
(1,310,745) (1,065,976)
(134,528,430) (211,604,124)
183,785,577 (1,515,144)
27,500 -
590,783 675,180
5.2 (628,445) (483,307)
(10,162) 191,873
23 (113,609,839) (574,882,956)
25 552,368 568,030,732
(91,257) (99,037)
(113,148,728) (6,951,261)
70,626,687 (8,274,532)
69,445,617 77,720,149
18 140,072,304 69,445,617

The attached notes 1to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

For Puniab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

N, —

fy

Chief Executive
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited

o
o
Ay

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

Ao

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited
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First Punjab Modaraba

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Balance as at 01 Julv 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Capital Reserve

Revenue Reserve

Certificate Fair Value Statutory Accumulated
capital Reserve reserve loss Total
-------------------------------------- Rupees-=-======cccccccmmccccoccccccccccccaaaaas
340.200.000 8.846.368 216.692.528 (379.965.427) 185.773.469
- - (55,745,195) (55,745,195)
—- —- (55,745,195-) (55,745,195-)
340,200,000 8,846,368 216,692,528 (435,710,622) 130,028,274
928.373 - 15.017.261 15.945.634
928,37; - 15,017,26; 15,945,63;
- 1,484,150 (1,484,150) -
340,200,000 9,774,741 218,176,678 (422,177,5M) 145,973,908

The attached notes 1to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Ny —

Chief Financial Officer
Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited
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(Modaraba Management Company)
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Chief Executive

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

\\‘Q}; ﬂ ].‘ f/

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited

AW r@e&

Director

Punjab Modaraba Services

( Private ) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1.2

The Group and its Operations
The “Group” consists of:

Parent Percentage of holding

2021 2020

First Punjab Modaraba
Subsidiary Company
Puniab Capital Securities (Private) Limited 100% 100%

First Punjab Modarba (the Modaraba) was formed under the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and rules framed there under and is
managed by Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank
of Punjab), a company incorporated in Pakistan. The registered office of the Modaraba is
situated at 3rd floor, National Tower, Egerton Road, Lahore. The Modaraba commenced its
operations on 23 December 1992. The Modaraba is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Modaraba is a perpetual and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged in the
business of ljarah, Musharikah and Morabaha financing, equity investment and other related
businesses in accordance with the injunctions of Islam.

During the year, Modaraba has obtained approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity by insertion of a new
clause for this purpose in prospectus of the Modaraba on 13 January 2021.

Punjab Capital Securities (Private)

The Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited ("the Company") is registered under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (which is replaced by Companies Act 2017) as a company
limited by shares on the 29th day of November 2016. The Company is mainly engaged in
business of brokerage services, portfolio management and consultancy services. The
registered office of the Company is situated at Room No 319, 3" Floor, Lahore stock exchange
(LSE) Building, Lahore.

Basis of Consolidation

The Group consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of
the Modaraba and its subsidiary.

Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Modaraba. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The consolidated
financial statements of subsidiary have been consolidated on line by line basis. All significant
inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognized in assets are also eliminated.

The Modaraba applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Modaraba recognizes any non-

controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- by-acquisition basis, at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The consolidated financial statements of the Modaraba and its subsidiary are
prepared upto the same reporting date using consistent accounting policies.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through income statement.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Modaraba is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill, if any, is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in income statement. After initial
recognition, is measured at carrying value i.e. cost at the date of acquisition less any
accumulated impairment.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Modaraba ceases to have control any retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Modaraba had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Non-controlling interest

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non- controlling interests as
transaction with parties external to the Group. Disposals of non-controlling interests results in
gain and losses for the Group that are recorded in the profit and loss account.

Management's Assessment of Going Concern

In assessing the going concern status of the Modaraba, management has carefully assessed
number of factors covering the performance of the business, business prospects and appetite
of majority shareholder to continue financial support. Based on the analysis of these,
management is comfortable that the Modaraba will be able to continue as a going concern in
the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Modaraba has made profit after tax of Rs. 7,420,750,
which is mainly due to reduction in finance cost and reversal of provisions. The accumulated
loss, net of reserves, as at 30 June 2021 amount to Rs. 195,481,018 (2020: Rs.202,941,768)
which exceeds fifty percent of the total amount subscribed by the holders of the Modaraba
Certificates. Further the current liabilities of the Modaraba exceed its current assets by Rs.
93,069,290 as at 30 June 2021. However sufficient cushion is available in financing lines
approved in favor of the Modaraba.

In order to address going concern issue in terms of section 23 of the Modaraba Companies and
Modarabas (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (the Modaraba Ordinance), The Bank of
Punjab (BOP) being the parent company of the Modaraba’s Management Company’ is
providing enduring support and has confirmed that it shall continue to provide financial
support to the Modaraba in order to mitigate liquidity risk. The Modaraba has obtained
approval from the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan dated 13 January 2021 to
undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activities. Accordingly, financial benefits
shall be accrued in books of Modaraba in due course of time. Further, the Modaraba has made
significant progress in terms of recovery from certain classified borrowers resulting in
improvement of net equity in term of compliance of section 23 of the Modaraba Ordinance.
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On the basis of support and the arrangements as outlined above and the business plan
prepared by the management, the management is of the view that no material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and the Modaraba shall be able to
operate on going concern basis in the foreseeable future. Consequently, these financial
statements have been prepared reflecting these assumptions.

Basis of preparations

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the group in which
investment in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of acqusition method. Standalone
financial statements of Modaraba and its subsidiary are prepared separately.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Such standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprises of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- The requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control)
Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Prudential
Regulations for Modarabas (hereinafter referred to as the relevant laws).

Where provisions and directives issued under Companies Act, 2017 and the relevant laws differ
from IFRS Standards, the provisions and directives issued under Companies Act, 2017 and the
relevant laws have been followed.

The SECP has deferred the applicability of IFRS-9 for Modaraba uptil 30 June 2022 via SRO
800(l) / 2021 dated 22 June 2021. However, the Modaraba had already adopted other
requirements of IFRS-9 except for provision against Islamic financings. Therefore, the
Modaraba has continued same practice during the current year as well. The provision against
financing has been determined in accordance with requirement of the Prudential Regulations.

The SECP has issued directive (vide SRO 431 (I) / 2007 dated May 22, 2007) that Islamic
Financial Accounting Standard 2 (IFAS 2) shall be followed in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by Companies and Modarabas while accounting for Lease Financing
transactions as defined by the said standard. The Modaraba has adopted the said standard.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are stated at their fair value
or amortized cost as applicable.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the
Modaraba’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has
been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. It
also requires the management to exercise judgment in application of the Modaraba’s
accounting policies. The estimates, judgment and associated assumptions are based on the
management’s experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
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Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, orin the period of revision and future periods if the
revision affects both the current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions and
estimates are significant to the Modaraba’s financial statement or where judgment was
exercised in the application of accounting policies are as follows:

241 Depreciation/Amortization
Estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of fixed assets in
own use and ljarah assets (note 5)

2.4.2 Provision against non-performing loans and advances
The Modaraba reviews its portfolio to assess amount of non-performing contracts and
provision required there against on a quarterly basis. The provision is made in
accordance with the prudential regulations issued by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

2.4.3 Income taxes
The Group takes into account relevant provisions of current income tax laws while
providing for current and deferred tax

2.44 Provision against non performing financing (Suspense income)
The Modaraba reviews its overdue ijarah rentals, morabaha receivable and musharikah
receivable at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in
profit and loss account, in addition to the mandatory provisions required in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the SECP. In particular,
judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and the timing
of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates
are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the provisions.

3 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the
year ended 30 June 2020

The Group has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and
interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 16
IFRIC 23
IFRS 9
IAS 28
IAS 19
IFRS 3

IFRS 11
IAS 12

IAS 23

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — (Amendments)
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendments)

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — (Amendments)

Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation — (Amendments)
Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments
classified as equity

Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and
interpretations did not have any material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned
below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendment) 01 Jan 2020

IFRS 9,

IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reforms (Amendments) 01Jan 2020

and IFRS 7

IAS1

and Definition of Material (Amendment) 01Jan 2020

IAS 8

IFRS 16 COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments) 01 Jan 2020

IAS1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non Current 01Jan 2022
(Amendments)

IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendment) 01Jan 2022

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 01Jan 2022
(Amendment)

IAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 01Jan 2022
(Amendment)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments- Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for 01.Jan 2022
derecognition of financial liabilities (Ammendment)

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements 01Jan 2022
(Ammendment)

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the
Group consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting
standards have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for
annual reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The Group expects that such
improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Group consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
Standards on or after)

IFRS1 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standa January 01, 2009
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01,2022
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those of the previous year except for the change explained below:
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Tangible fixed assets

Assets in own use

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognised as separate
assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the items will flow to the Group and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the profit and loss account as and when
incurred.

Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to profit and loss on straight line basis, so as to
write off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at annual rates mentioned
in note 5.2.

Residual values and the useful lives of the assets are reviewed at least at each financial year
end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted. if appropriate at each
reporting date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s canying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed asset
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values
exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable
amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in income currently. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an
impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are charged to income during the period in which they are
incurred. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets'
carrying amounts or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only where it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the
Group and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. The useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each reporting
date. Amortisation is charged from the month the asset is available for use while in the
case of assets disposed of, it is charged till the month preceding the month of disposal.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any. Is taken to the profit and loss
account in the period in which these arise.
ljarah Assets

ljarah assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line
method whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is written off over the period of
facility, which is considered to be the estimated useful life of the asset. However, in the event
the asset is expected to be available for re-ijarah, depreciation is charged over the economic
life of asset using straight line basis. In respect of additions and disposals during the year,
depreciation is charged proportionately from the date of delivery of assets to the date of its
maturity / termination.

ljarah income is recognized on an accrual basis as and when the rental becomes due.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 84



First Punjab Modaraba

SERVG,
Q@N Sy
'

Yo,

PUNUAg

clsumﬂ“)\b

@

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Impairment (Including provision for potential ijarah losses and write offs)

The carrying amount of the Modaraba's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment in any asset or group of assets. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and impairment losses
are recognised immediately as an expense in the profit and loss account. For loans and
receivables, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the
Modaraba will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective profit rate.

Provision for non-performing leases, if any, is made in accordance with the requirements of the
Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and is charged to the profit and loss account in the current period.
Outstanding balances in net investment in ljarah finance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of recovery.

ljarah rentals and Musharikah investments

ljarah rentals and Musharikah investments are stated net of provision and suspense income.
Provision is recognized for ljarah rentals receivable and musharikah investment, in accordance
with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP). Bad debts are written-off when identified.

Morabaha Investments

Morabaha investments are stated net of provision. Provision is recognized for Morabaha
investments in accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba's issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Morabaha receivable are recorded by the Modaraba at the invoiced amount and disclosed as
such in the balance sheet.

Purchase and sales under Morabaha and the resultant profit are accounted for on the
culmination of Morabaha transaction.

The profit on that portion of sales revenue not due for payment are deferred by accounting for
a debit to "Unearned Morabaha Income" account with the corresponding credit to "Deferred
Morabaha Income" account and shown in the balance sheet as a liability.

Development properties

Property acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for sale in the ordinary course
of business, rather than to be held for rental or capital appreciation, is classified as
development properties and is measured at lower of cost and net realisable value.

All project costs incurred or to be incurred are capitalised as a cost of development properties
and mainly includes: costs / rights for free-hold and leasehold land; construction cost,
planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services,
property transfer taxes, construction overheads and other related costs necessary to bring the
premises in saleable condition and development charges.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, based on
market prices at the reporting date less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

The cost of sales recognised in profit or loss is determined with reference to the costs incurred
on the property sold and an allocation of any non-specific costs based on the total area of
land sold for property, in relation to total area of land. The development charges are
recognised in profit or loss on the basis of reimbursable development costs recoverable to
date from customers on property sold apportioned to total area of land sold in relation to total
area of land. Development charges not recoverable from customers are borne by the Modaraba
and charged to profit or loss in the year, in which these are incurred.

The management reviews the carrying values of the development properties on an annual
basis.
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4.6

4.7

4.7.1
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash with banks in
current, savings and deposit accounts.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with effect from 1 July 2018. Accordingly,
financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade debts and bank balance that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Modaraba initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
b) Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative

gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
d Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and
) losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term.

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if
doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Modaraba does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at

amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest

(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group financial assets at amortized costs includes advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, ijarah rental receivables, musharikah investment, morabaha investment and
long term deposits.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains
and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments
as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCl when they meet the definition of
equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met:
a) The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation
and impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognized in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.

The Group does not have debt instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses.
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Financial assets - Derecoanition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained ubstantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to
the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Modaraba also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and it is therefore no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

However, NBFI| & Modaraba Association of Pakistan, based on the clarification of the SECP,
have informed all its members that the provisioning criteria will remain those as framed under
Modaraba Ordinance, 1980 and Rules & Regulations framed therein. Accordingly, the
Modaraba has maintained provision against financing assets in accordance with relevant laws
applicable to Modaraba.
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Securies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its S.R.O No. 985 (1) / 2019
dated 2nd September 2019, in partial modification of its previous S.R.O 229 (1) / 2019 dated
February 14, 2019 notified that , in respect of companies holding financial assets due from
Government of Pakistan, the requirement contained in 'lFRS-9 (Financial Instruments ) with
respect to application of Expected credit lossess method" shall not be applicable till 30 June
2021, provided that the company follow relevant requirement of IAS-39 'Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’, in respect of above referred financial assets during the
exemption period. Consequently, these consolidated financial statements do not include the
impact of ECL method in respect of 'Tax refunds due from government'.

For bank balances, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group reviews internal and external information available
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the
outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has no material impact on amounts in the statement of
financial position as the current methodology adequately reflects requirements of the new
standards.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - initial recognition
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group financial liabilities include deferred morabaha income, redeemable capital, trade
and other payables, unclaimed profit, profit payable and long term musharikah finance.

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other
liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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4.8

4.9

4.10
41

4.12

Finance arrangements including Certificates of Musharikah

These are carried on the balance sheet at principal amount.
Profits on these arrangements are recognized as expense in the period in which they incur.
Profit on Musharikah finance is accounted for on the basis of the projected rate of profit. The

effect of adjustments, if any, between actual rate and projected rate of profit is accounted for
at the end of each year after determination of the actual rate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Staff retirement benefit
Defined contribution plan

The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees. Equal monthly
contributions @ 8.33% of the basic salary are made to the fund both by the Modaraba and
employees.

Defined benefit plan

The Modaraba operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for its eligible employees completing
prescribed period of service in accordance with service rules of the Modaraba. Provision is
made for gratuity in accordance with the requirements laid down by IAS 19. The actuarial gains
and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income when they occur. Amounts recorded
in profit and loss are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements
and net interest income (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit asset (liability)
are recognized in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling to profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

ljarah rentals

ljarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and when rentals become due.

Documentation charges, front-end fee and other ljarah income are recognized as income on
receipt basis. Unrealized ijarah income pertaining to non-performing ijarah is held in suspense
account, where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations
(PR).

Morabaha transaction

Profit on morabaha transaction is recognized over the period the payment becomes due. The
unearned portion is reflected as deferred morabaha income.

Profit on musharikah arrangement is recognized under the effective interest rate, based on the
amount outstanding.

Profit on bank
Return on bank deposits are recognized on accrual basis, using effective interest rate method.

Capital gain or losses on sale of investment
Capital gain / loss on investment is recognized on sale of the respective investments.
Dividend income

Dividend income on equity instruments is recognized when the right to receive the same is
established.

Commission income

Commission income is recognized on accrual basis.

Annual Report 2021 / Page 90



First Punjab Modaraba

SERVG,
Q@N Sy
'

PUNIAg
&

(

clsumﬂ“)\b

4.3

414

4.15

4.16

4.17

Trade date accounting

All 'regular way' purchases and sales of quoted equity securities are recognized on the trade
date i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase/sell the asset. 'Regular way' purchases
or sales of quoted investments require delivery within three working days after the transaction
date as per stock exchange regulations.

Profit distribution and appropriations

Profit distribution and appropriation to reserves are recognized as liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which these are approved. Transfer to statutory reserve
and any of the mandatory appropriations, as may be required by law, are recognized in the
period to which these relate.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is made on taxable income at the prevailing rates of tax after
taking into account tax credits available, if any. The income of non-trading modarabas is
exempt from tax provided that not less than 90% of their profits are distributed to the
certificate-holders as reduced by amount transferred to a mandatory reserve as required under
the provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXXI of 1980) are distributed to the certificate holders.

Deferred

The Group accounts for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount
of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent, if it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account.

Earnings per certificate

Earnings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the year by
weighted average number of certifictaes outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
certificate is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate

holders by taking into account the conversioin of any diluted potential ordinary certificate.

Segment reporting

As per IFRS 8 - 'Operating Segments', operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting used by the chief operating decision maker. The chief executive
officer of the management company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and
considers the business to have a single operating segment. The Modaraba's asset allocation
decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and the Modaraba's
performance is evaluated on an overall basis.
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6.1

Note 2021 2020
Intangible Assets Rupees Rupees
LSE room 6.1 4,265,726 4,265,726
Trading right entitlement certificate (TREC) 6.2 2,500,000 2,500,000
Computer software 6.3 402,186 -
7,167,912 6,765,726

LSE room
Cost 4,265,726 4,265,726
Addition/deletion during the year 6.1.1 - -

4,265,726 4,265,726

This represents cost of right to use room given by LSE Financial Services Limited with indefinite useful life.
These are considered to be indefinite as there is no foreseeable limit on the period during which an entity
expects to consume the future economic benefits. The right to use the room was purchased on 24 April 2017
amounting to Rs.4,374,500.

This represents charges in respect of transfer of right to use LSE room in the name of the Company.

Note 2021 2020
6.2 Trading right entitlement certificate (TREC) Rupees Rupees
Carrying value 2,500,000 2,500,000
Impairement in value of TREC - -
2,500,000 2,500,000
Cost 5,000,000 5,000,000

This represents the trading right entitlement certificate which is given by Pakistan Stock Exchange in order to
carry out trading. In previous year, SECP has reduced the notional value of transferable TRE Certificate from
Rs.5 million to Rs.2.5 million for the purpose of Base Minimum Capital (BMC) through its notification PSX/N-
7178 dated 10 November 2017. According, the Company has charged an impairment of Rs. 2.5 million on TREC in
the year ended 30 June 2018.

Further, the TREC is under lien in favor of PSX to meet the requirement of Base Minimum Capital (BMC) of the
Risk Management Regulation of PSX Rule Book.

Note 2021 2020
6.3 Computer software Rupees Rupees
Cost 6.3.1 2,495,000 1,295,000
Amortization 6.3.2 (2,092,814) (1,295,000)
Carrying Amount 402,186 -
6.3.1 Cost
Balance as at 1 July 2020 1,295,000 1,295,000
Additions 1,200,000 -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 2,495,000 1,295,000
6.3.2 Amortization
Balance as at 1 July 2020 (1,295,000) (1,295,000)
Amortization for the year 33 (797,814) -
Balance as at 30 June 2021 (2,092,814) (1,295,000)
Rate of amortization 20% - 66.67% 20%
7 Long Term Investments
843,975 (June 2020 : 843,975) 19.605.539 19155066
Shares of LSE Financial Services ! ! U
Other comprehensive income 928,373 450,473
20,533,912 19,605,539
71 In absence of active market for shares of LSE Financial Services Limited, it is measured using net asset value of
Rs. 22.70, which approximates the fair value of shares of LSE Financial Services Limited as majority assets held
by LSE Financial Services Limited are carried at revaluation/fair value model.
7.2 LSE Financial Services Limited shares are under lien in favor of PSX to meet the requirement of Base Minimum

Capital (BMC) of the Risk Management Regulation of PSX Rule Book.
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Note 2021 2020
Long Term Musharikah Investment - secured Rupees Rupees
Long term musharikah investment 8.1 582,555,541 650,894,432
Less: Current portion of long term musharikah investment 13 (361,621,163) (422,480,205)
220,934,378 228,414,227

The profit charged on these facilities ranged from 9.32% to 19.98% per annum (June 2020: 8.55% to 22.55% per
annum). These facilities are secured by way of personal guarantees and mortgage of properties.

Note 2021 2020

Long Term Morabaha Investment - secured Rupees Rupees
Long term morabaha investment 9.1 9,008,220 21,619,598
Add: Unearned morabaha income - 2,077,112
9,008,220 23,696,710
Less: Current portion of long term morabaha investment 13 (9,008,220) (12,489,038)
- 1,207,672
Less: Current portion of unearned morabaha income 13 - (2,386,568)
- 8,821,104

These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation and pledge of stocks, personal guarantees
and demand promissory notes. The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 8.50% to 19.53% per annum
(2020 : 8.50% to 23%).

Note 2021 2020
Long Term Deposits Rupees Rupees
National clearing company of Pakistan limited (NCCPL) 200,000 1,500,000
Central depository company 192,500 192,500
Pakistan stock exchange (PSX) 1,490,491 576,909
Basic deposit for regular 200,000 -
Basic deposit for future 1,000,000 -
Deposit against MSF 100,000 -
Others 112,444 112,444

3,295,435 2,381,853

Deferred Tax Asset

1n1 64,386,484 64,398,663

This represents deferred tax asset created against brought forward losses and depreciation & amortization
expense available for use in future. The management is confident that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to set off these losses. Further, the management does not intend to avail exemption under clause 100 of Part 1
of Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

The aggregate deferred tax asset available to the Modaraba for set off against future taxable profits as at 30
June 2021 amounted to Rs. 183.16 million (30 June 2020: Rs. 150.92 million). Of these, deferred tax asset
aggregating Rs. 64.40 million (30 June 2020: Rs 64.40 million) have been recognized in the financial
statements.

Expiry of business loss, depreciation and alternate corporate tax is as follows:

Tax year Nature 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
2026 Business loss 22,289,062 22,232,390
Unlimited Depreciation 55.084.521 24.378.509
2024 Alternate corporate tax 9,816,975 9,816,975
2025 Alternate corporate tax 16.739.766 16,739,766
2026 Alternate corporate tax 3,489,927 3,489,927
2027 Alternate corporate tax 4.016.478 4.016.478
2028 Alternate corporate tax 4.711.236 4.711.236
2029 Alternate corporate tax 1.136.970 1136.970
2030 Alternate corporate tax - -
2031 Alternate corporate tax 1,477,096 -
41,388,448 39,911,352
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121

12.2

13

131

13.2

14

14.1

Short Term Morabaha Investment-secured

Short term morabaha Investment
Add: Unearned morabaha income

Less:  Provision for doubtful morabaha investment

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
121 486,122,013 521,591,548
1,158,017 4,515,908
487,280,030 526,107,456
12.2 (235,561,379) (235,561,379)
251,718,651 290,546,077

These are secured against mortgage of properties, hypothecation and pledge of stocks, personal guarantees
and demand promissory notes. The rate of profit on morabaha finances ranges from 11.93% to 19.90% per annum

(2020:16.29% to 19.45% per annum).

Provision for doubtful morabaha investment

Opening balance

Additions during the year
Reversals during the year

Closing balance
Current Maturity of Long Term Investment

Current portion of long term musharikah investment
Less: Provision against musharika investment

Current portion of long term morabaha investment

Add: Unearned morabaha income
Less: Provision against morabaha investment

Provision against musharikah investment

Opening balance

Additions during the year
Specific provision

Reversed during the year
Closing balance

Provision for doubtful morabaha investment

Opening balance
Charge during the year
Closing balance

ljarah Rental Receivables

ljarah rental receivable
Less: Provision against ijarah rental receivable

Provision against ijarah rental receivable

Opening balance
Additions in provision during the year
Additions in suspension during the year

Reversal of suspension during the year
Reversal of provision during the year

Closing balance
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Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
235,561,379 235,561,379
235,561,379 235,561,379
8 361,621,163 422,480,205
13.1 (15,761,143) (15,761,143)
345,860,020 406,719,062
9 9,008,220 12,489,038
9 - 2.386.568
13.2 (8,800,000) (8,800,000)
208,220 6,075,606
346,068,240 412,794,668
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
15,761,143 8,709,526
- | 10,561,330 |
- 10.561.330
- (3,509,713)
15,761,143 15,761,143
8,800,000 8,800,000
8,800,000 8,800,000
368,478,892 428,484,372
141 (132,728,357) (155,596,948)
235,750,535 272,887,424
155,596,948 155,303,248
787,464 293,700
8,707,278 -
291 (18,407,811) -
(13,955,522) -
(32,363,333) -
132,728,357 155,596,948
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Future liarah rentals receivable

Aggregate amount of future ijarah rentals receivable on the basis of agreements executed up to 30 June 2021
are as follows:

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Up to one year 183,198,769 175,733,168
Above one year and up to five year 171,358,513 266,958,991
354,557,282 442,692,159

Development Properties - Land

The diversification of business model, utilizing multi-purpose status of the Modaraba through construction and
development activity has been envisioned as a business prospect. The Modaraba has obtained approval of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to undertake Building, Construction and Real Estate activity
by insertion of a new clause for this purpose in its Prospectus. The work on new business segment has been
started and two plots have been acquired while more are under process of acquisition, for a project comprising

construction of small houses.

Note 2021 2020
Trade Receivables Rupees Rupees
Receivable against margin financing 10,732,516 5,879,854
Receivable from NCCPL - 2,839,675
Other trade receivables 16.1 21,923,368 264,114
32,655,884 8,983,643
Aging analysis
Within 5 days 20,057,055 35,918
Above 5 days 1,866,313 228,196
21,923,368 264,14
Receivables above 5 days net-off collateral (after applying haircut) 1,677,567 171,012

As per clarifications issued by PSX in its notice PSX/N-6741 this information is required as additional disclosure

and does not provide accounting treatment hence no provision was recorded.

Note 2021 2020
Advances, Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables Rupees Rupees
Profit receivable
- Morabaha investment 171 20,454,798 10,535,5M
- Musharikah investment 17.2 43,453,092 36,979,801
63,907,890 47,515,312
Prepayments 4,953,529 3,343,952
Advances 2,795,704 2,807,424
Advances to Suppliers 28,990 119,585
Security Deposits 33,400,000 8,900,000
Non-banking assets 8,486,298 31,782,500
Accrued Mark up on Margin Financing 180,149 44,5M
Other receivables 106,929,156 113,232,181
220,681,716 207,745,465
Less: Provision for other receivables 17.3 (11,128,292) (11,128,292)
209,553,424 196,617,173
Morabaha profit receivable
Morabaha profit receivable 47,984,578 37,656,836
Less: Income transferred to suspense 1711 (27,529,780) (27,121,325)
20,454,798 10,535,511
Income transferred to suspense
Opening balance 27,121,325 27,121,325
Addition during the year 408,455
Closing balance 27,529,780 27,121,325

Annual Report 2021 / Page 97



ASERV,
s
Ovs?-"a s,

PUNUAg
Mo,
>
¢
aamn™

@

First Punjab Modaraba

17.2

17.2.1

17.3

17.4

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

19

191

Musharikah profit receivable

Musharikah profit receivable
Less: Income transferred to suspense

Income transferred to suspense

Opening balance

Addition during the year
Reversal of suspension during the year

Closing balance

Provision against other receivables

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Closing balance

17.21

29.3
29.3

64,907,268 56,869,751
(21,454,176) (19,889,950)
43,453,092 36,979,801
19,889,950 16,851,729
12,566,330 6,555,237
(11,002,104) (3,517,016)
21,454,176 19,889,950
1,128,292 11,128,292
11,128,292 11,128,292

This represents deposits with the Pakistan Stock Excahnge Limited against regular trade and future trade

exposure.

Cash and bank balances

Cash at banks

- Current accounts
- Deposit accounts
- Savings accounts
- Current account with State Bank of Pakistan

Cash in hand

Note 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
18.1 85,300,763 23,088,619
18.2&18.3 52,040,602 46,046,049
18.2&18.3 2,440,816 49,509
18.4 233,586 65,249
140,015,767 69,249,426
56,537 196,191
140,072,304 69,445,617

The balance of Rs. 59.36 million (2020: Rs.3.89 million) is maintained with The Bank of Punjab (the holding
company of the Modaraba's Management Company).

Under the terms and conditions for the issuance of certificates of musharikah (both long and short term), the
Modaraba is required to maintain a Redemption Reserve Fund equal to at least 5% of the contribution against
Certificates of Musharikah Finance received, which may be utilized for redemption purposes.

The rate of profit on deposit and saving accounts ranges between 4.25% to 8.94% per annum (2020: 4.25% to

13.00% per annum).

This account has been opened for payment of online charges of the Credit Information Bureau of State Bank of

Pakistan.

Certificate capital

Authorized certificate capital
50,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital

2021

2020

----- (Number of certificates)----
20,000,000

20,000,000

14,020,000

14,020,000

34,020,000

34,020,000

19.2

As at 30 June 2021, The Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
13,320,694 (2020:13,320,694) certificates of Rs. 10 each.
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Cetifcates of Rs. 10/- fully paid on

cash

Cetifcates of Rs. 10/- issues as

bonus certificates

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
500,000,000 500,000,000
2021 2020
200,000,000 200,000,000
140,200,000 140,200,000
340,200,000 340,200,000

(the management company) held
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Note 2021 2020
Reserves Rupees Rupees
Capital reserve
Statutory reserve 20.1 218,176,678 216,692,528
Fair Value Reserve 9,774,741 8,846,368
227,951,419 225,538,896
Revenue reserves
Accumulated loss (422,177,51) (435,710,622)
(194,226,092) (210,171,726)

This represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan requiring modaraba to transfer not less than 20% and not more than
50% of its profits after tax in such manner that reserves equal 100% of the paid up capital. Thereafter a sum not
less than 5% of the profit after tax is to be set aside.

Note 2021 2020
Movement in statutory reserve Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 216,692,528 216,692,528
Transfer from profit 1,484,150 -
218,176,678 216,692,528
Long term security deposits
Long term security deposits against ljarah 131,545,269 144,656,348
Less: Current maturity of security deposits 24 (88,769,360) (83,316,089)
42,775,909 61,340,259
Deferred morabaha income
Deferred morabaha income 12 1,158,017 6,593,020
Less: Current maturity of deferred morabaha income (1,158,017) (2,386,568)
- 4,206,452

These represent receivables against morabaha transactions on deferred payment basis at profit margin which
ranges from 8.50% to 19.53% per annum (2020 : 8.50% to 23%).

Note 2021 2020
Long term musharikah finance secured Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 648,738,613 1,223,621,569
Additions during the year 4,425,797,407 2,378,250,696
Less: Paid during the year (4,539,407,246) (2,953,133,652)
(113,609,839) (574,882,956)
231 535,128,774 648,738,613

The Modaraba has availed musharikah finance facilities from The Bank of Punjab having approved limits of Rs.
1,585 million (2020: Rs. 1,585 million) and tenor of 3 years. The facilities have expired on 26 October 2021 and
are under process of renewal for another 3 years. These facilities are secured by way of first pari passu charge
over present and future fixed assets of Modaraba for amount of Rs. 860 million, first pari passu charge over
present and future current assets of Modaraba for an amount of Rs. 1,040 million and ranking charge over
present and future current assets for an amount of Rs. 860 million. The estimated share of profit payable on
musharikah facilities is 3 month Kibor plus 0.25 bps per annum (2020: 3 month Kibor per annum).

Note 2021 2020
Current maturity of non current liabilities Rupees Rupees
Current maturity of long term security deposits 241 88,769,360 83,316,089
Current maturity of deferred morabaha income 22 1,158,017 2,386,568
89,927,377 85,702,657

This includes security deposit amounting to Rs. 70.90 million (2020: Rs.82.70 million) against those ijarah where
the customers have defaulted payment of rentals and the Modaraba has filed suits for recovery.
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Note 2021 2020

Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 1,013,549,225 445,518,493
Add: Issued during the year 552,368 2,410,030,732
Add: Re- issued during the year 1,000,000,000 105,000,000
Less: Redeemed during the year (1,000,000,000) (1,947,000,000)

552.368 568.030.732
Closing balance 25.1 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225

The Certificates of Musharaka have been issued with a maturity of upto 3 years. The share of profit payable
ranges from 5.35% to 13.60% per annum (2020: 5.35% to 13.75%).

Note 2021 2020
Profit payable Rupees Rupees
Musharikah finance 1,170,271 18,685,681
Redeemable capital 12,591,734 19,056,657
23,762,005 37,742,338
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses 271 4,906,528 3,859,647
Trade Payable 35,763,822 22,314,774
Payable to NCCPL 7,925,163
Tax deducted at source 1,289,173 817,321
Advances against ijarah / morabaha / musharikah 42,759,127 57,114,805
Other payables 35,467,741 18,593,521
128,111,554 102,700,068

This includes amount in respect of gratuity payable to employees amounting to Rs. 4.51 million (2020: 3.66
million).

Contingencies and commitments

Contingencies

The assessing officer, while finalizing assessments for the years 1997-98 and 1998-99, made add backs out of
profit and loss account. The Modaraba had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
(CIT-(A)), who has rejected the appeals. The Modaraba has filed an appeal, against the order of CIT-(A), before
the honorable Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, which has been decided in favor of Modaraba, however Income
Tax Department has filed appeal before honorable Lahore High Court. Modaraba management company
expects a favorable outcome of the case.

Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, (the Ordinance) for tax year 2003 while rejecting the exemption claimed from tax under Clause
100 of Part | of Second Schedule to the Ordinance and made additions on account of provision for bad debts,
which resulted in a tax liability of Rs. 27.410 million. The Modaraba filed a rectification application under section
221 of the Ordinance for reducing the tax rate from 35% to 25%, resultantly the rectification order passed by the
tax department and reduced the tax liability to Rs. 14.580 million. The Modaraba also filed an appeal before the
CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2003 against the order of ACIR. In this regard, after hearing of the appeal, the CIR
(Appeals) by accepting the claim of exemption has issued a favorable order to the Modaraba while deleting the
tax liability of Rs. 14,580,110 vide order No. 31 dated 27 June 2009. The income tax department has filed an
appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against the order of CIR (Appeals) which was decided in favor
of the Modaraba. Subsequent to year end the Income Tax Department has filed reference in High Court against
decision of Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for adjudication. Modaraba management
company expects a favorable outcome of the case.

Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, (the Ordinance) for tax year 2005 while rejecting the exemption claimed from tax under Clause
100 of Part | of Second Schedule to the Ordinance in an arbitrary manner and assessing the taxable income at
Rs. 49.85 million and tax liability at Rs. 17.67 million. The Modaraba filed a rectification application under section
221 of the Ordinance for reducing the tax rate from 35% to 25%. Further, the Modaraba has filed an appeal
before the CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2005 against this order. In this regard, after hearing of the appeal, the CIR
(Appeals) by accepting the claim of exemption has issued a favorable order to the Modaraba while deleting the
tax liability of Rs. 17.67 million.

The income tax department has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against the order of
CIR (Appeals) which was decided in favor of the Modaraba. Subsequent to year end the Income Tax Department

has filed reference in High Court against decision of Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for
adjudication. Modaraba management company expects a favorable outcome of the case.
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Legal suits against Modaraba

Suit for rendition of account Rs. 22.145 million filed by a defaulter against the Modaraba. The suit is pending in
Honorable Banking Court. The management is of the view that case has no merit and would be disposed off in

favor of the Modaraba.

Aggregate amount of guarantee given by a bank on behalf of the Modaraba in respect of the payment

guarantee amounts to Nil (2020: Rs. Nil).

Commitments

ljarah commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. Nil (2020: Nil).

Morabaha commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. Nil (2020 : Nil).

Musharikah commitments approved but not disbursed as on balance sheet date amount to Rs. 22.29 million. (2020:
Rs.10.85 million).
Note 2021 2020
Operating income Rupees Rupees
Income from ijarah rentals
ljarah income 162,026,751 161,087,010
Add: Reversal of rentals suspended 141 18,407,811 -
Less: Addition of rentals suspended 8,707,278 -
Less: Depreciation on ijarah assets (121,115,017) (96,857,165)
68,026,823 64,229,845
Income from morabaha financing
Morabaha investment 3,433,160 1,232,932
Less: Suspension 1711 (408,455) (986,728)
3,841,615 10,246,204
Income from diminishing musharaka financing
Musharikah investment 65.403.963 113.846.468
Add: Reversals of rentals suspended 17.21 11,002,104 3,517,016
Less: Rentals suspended 17.21 (12,566,330) (6,555,237)
63,839,737 110,808,247
Revenue from Contract with Customers
Gross brokerage income 31,017,568 9,748,920
Federal excise duty (4,962,811) (1,559,827)
30.1 26,054,757 8,189,093
Gross brokerage
Retail clients 20,055,298 9,693,237
Institutional 5,999,459 55,683
26,054,757 9,748,920
Gain on disposal of assets
Gain on diposal of non banking assets 1,900,000 1,333,000
Gain on disposal of owned assets 25,297 -
Gain on disposal of ljarah assets 1,815,709 767,302
3,741,006 2,100,302
Other income
Profit on bank deposits 3,566,048 5,262,251
Margin Finance Income 842,020 479,713
Return on Exposure deposi with PSX 1,083,023 881,800
Dividend Income 590,783 675,180
Processing fee 1,349,031 1,703,356
Cheque return charges - 17,500
Gain on settlement of musharikah 5,049,915 1,490,539
Gain on settlement of morabaha 22,024 740,508
Miscellaneous income 4,278,493 3,745,906
Base Minimum Capital Profit 12,830 33,104
16,794,167 15,029,857
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Note 2021 2020

Administrative expenses Rupees Rupees
Salaries and benefits 39,861,301 37,670,520
Traveling and conveyance 191,261 245,588
Depreciation - owned asset 5.2 1,157,700 954,888
Amortization of Intangible Assets 6.3.2 797,814 -
Legal and professional 2,167,362 1,397,016
Printing and stationary 720,804 796,794
Insurance 2,556,136 972,949
PSX, Clearing house and CDC Charges 1,448,047 448,512
Fee and subscription 1,541,108 1,800,276
Auditor's remuneration 33.2 845,000 995,000
Repair and maintenance 2,001,250 1,460,515
Vehicle running and maintenance 229,792 157,494
Power and utilities 1,581,592 1,354,515
Entertainment expenses 674,184 783,356
Advertisement 194,000 58,768
Commission paid to traders 4,396,230 27,096
Telephone and postage 771,105 794,561
Corporate expenses 545,334 514,646
Rent rates and taxes 39,994 18,230
Selling and marketing expenses 865,019 1,085,442
Miscellaneous expenses 545,609 112,720

63,130,642 51,648,886

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.913 million (2020: Rs. 0.887 million) on account of provident fund
contribution and Rs.1.130 million (2020: Rs. 1.656 million) in respect of gratuity payable to employees.

2021 2020
Auditors’ remuneration Rupees Rupees
Audit fee 500,000 500,000
Half yearly review and others 175,000 375,000
Out of pocket expenses 170,000 120,000

845,000 995,000

Finance cost
Financial charges on musharikah 47,060,064 124,632,929
Financial charges on redeemable capital 71,997,139 82,875,907
Bank charges 167,445 177,583
FED Charges 3,114 1,602

119,227,762 207,688,021

Management fee

Management fee is payable to Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited. During the current year the
management has decided not to pay out the dividend to certificate holders from the current year net annual
profit therefore, as per SECP circular the management cannot pay the management fee to Management
Company.

Note 2021 2020
Taxation Rupees Rupees
Current Tax
- Current year 3,090,498 156,992
Deferred
- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (12,179) -
3,078,319 156,992

Earning per certificate
Basic
Basic earnings per certificate are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period by the weighted average

number of certificates outstanding during the period as follows:

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Profit for the period 15,017,261 (56,195,668)
Weighted average number of ordinary certificates 34,020,000 34,020,000
Earning per certificate 0.44 (1.65)

Diluted
No figure for diluted earnings per certificate has been presented as the Modaraba has not issued any
instruments which would have an impact on earnings per certificate when exercised.
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38 Transactions with related parties

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise of The Bank of Punjab, Punjab Modaraba Services
(Private) Limited and Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited. Transactions with related parties and
associated undertakings other than remuneration and benefits to key management personnel under the term of
employment are as follows:

38.1 Balances outstanding at the end of year

Note 2021 2020
38.1.1 The Bank of Punjab (Holding company of Modaraba's Rupees Rupees
Management Company)
Musharikah finances 535,128,774 648,738,613
Profit payable on musharikah finances 1,170,271 18,685,681
Certificates of musharikah 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Profit payable on certificates of musharikah 11,564,368 17,742,455

38.1.2 Punjab Capital Securities (Private) Limited (Subsidiary Company)
Investment in shares -
38.2 Transactions during the year

38.2.1 The Bank of Punjab (Holding company of
Modaraba's Management Company)

Bank charges 167,445 177,583
Profit charged on finances 47,060,064 124,632,929
Profit charged on certificates of Musharikah 71,370,373 57,513,006
Brokrage Income earned 4,796,234 68,926
39 Remuneration of officers and executives
2021
Chief Executives Executives Other Total
employees
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Remuneration 3,102,000 23,132,002 212,089 26,446,091
House rent allowance 361,814 5,476,811 84,836 5,923,461
Utility allowance 310,200 1,351,743 21,209 1,683,152
Medical allowance 310,200 1,351,743 21,209 1,683,152
Provident fund contribution 149,814 1,113,777 - 1,263,591
Gratuity Fund - 1,126,881 - 1,126,881
Expenses reimbursed - 1,734,973 - 1,734,973
4,234,028 35,287,930 339,342 39,861,300
Number of employees at the year end 1 42 2 44
Average no of employees 1 42 2 44
39.1 The chief financial officer has been provided a vehicle on ljarah.
2020
Chief Executives Executives Other Total
employees
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Remuneration 2,580,000 21,019,038 341,222 23,940,260
House rent allowance 467,783 4,918,704 136,489 5,522,976
Utility allowance 258,000 1,748,049 34122 2,040,171
Medical allowance 258,000 998,740 34,122 1,290,862
Provident fund contribution 134,325 1,013,792 28,424 1,176,541
Gratuity Fund - 2,042,927 - 2,042,927
Expenses reimbursed - 1,656,783 - 1,656,783
3,698,108 33,398,033 574,379 37,670,520
Number of employees at the year end 1 35 3 38
Average number of employees 1 35 3 38
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40 Financial instruments

The Modaraba has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors of the management company has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of Modaraba's risk management framework.

40.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Modaraba
by failing to discharge an obligation. The risk is generally limited to the carrying to principal amounts and
accrued profit thereon, if any. The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the
internal risk management policies and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations. The carrying amount of
the following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure at the reporting date:

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Bank balances 18 140,015,767 69,249,426
Musharikah investment - net 8 566,794,398 635,133,289
Long term morabaha investment - net 9 208,220 14,896,710
Short term morabaha investment - net 12 251,718,651 290,546,077
ljarah rental receivable - net 14 235,750,535 272,887,424
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 17 193,317,893 149,619,201
Long term deposits 10 3,295,435 2,381,853
Trade receivables 16 32,655,884 8,983,643

1,391,100,899 1,443,697,623

40.1.1 Bank balances

The Modaraba kept its surplus funds with banks having good credit rating. Currently the surplus funds are kept
with banks having medium to long term rating from AAA to AA+ and short term rating from Al+ to Al. Credit
risk rating of the banks are as follows:

Banks Short Term Long Term Agency
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA / VIS
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al A PACRA / VIS
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA / VIS
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited Al A PACRA / VIS

40.1.2 Description of collateral held

The Modaraba's ijarah are secured against ijarah assets and personal guarantees. In few ijarah additional
collateral is also obtained in the form of mortgaged property.

Morabaha investments are secured by way of personal guarantees of the directors, pledge of stocks, mortgage
of properties and charge on the assets varying from case to case.

Musharikah investments are secured against musharikah assets, personal guarantees and mortgage of
properties.
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40.1.3 Aging Analysis of Morabaha receivable

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
--------------------------- Rupees-=--=-===--mccommmmcccmc e cceeeeas

Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 20,454,798 20,454,798 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 1,395,183 - 1,395,183 1,395,183
1to 2 years - Substandard - - - -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 26,134,597 - 26,134,597 26,134,597

47,984,578 20,454,798 27,529,780 27,529,780

2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
————————————————————————————— Rupees--------------cccmmmmmmm

Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 3,586 3,586 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 10,531,925 - 10,531,925 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 986,728 - 986,728 986,728
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 26,134,597 - 26,134,597 26,134,597

37,656,836 3,586 37,653,250 27,121,325

Suspension is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of

requirements given under

Requlations for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.

the Prudential
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40.1.4 Aging Analysis of short term Morabaha investment

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provision
--------------------------- Rupees-----==-=-mmommmme e e
Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 24,016,220 24,016,220 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM - - - -
1to 2 years - Substandard - - - -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 471,114,013 - 471,114,013 244,361,379
495,130,233 24,016,220 471,114,013 244,361,379
2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provision
————————————————————————————— Rupees------------cccmmmmmee -

Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 59,397,134 59,397,134 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 12,700,000 - 12,700,000 -
1to 2 years - Substandard - - - -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful - - - -
More than 3 years - Loss 471,114,013 - 471,114,013 244,361,379
543,211,146 59,397,134 483,814,013 244,361,379

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential
Regulations for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provisio-n /
Suspension
--------------------------- Rupees----====-ccmccccmcmccncccccceaaa
On demand - - - -
Less than 6 months 32,655,035 32,655,035 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 501,254 - 501,254 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 96,218 - 96,218 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 87,676 - 87,676 -
More than 3 years - Loss 335,138,709 - 335,138,709 132,728,357
368,478,892 32,655,035 335,823,857 132,728,357
2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
————————————————————————————— Rupees---===mmmmmmmmecccmccc e e

Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 45137,205 45137,205 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 61,953 - 61,953 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 98,946 - 98,946 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 103,015 - 103,015 -
More than 3 years - Loss 383,083,253 - 383,083,253 155,303,248
428,484,372 45,137,205 383,347,167 155,303,248

Suspension is recognized by Modaraba on the basis of requirements given under the Prudential Regulations
for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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40.1.6 Aging Analysis of Musharikah receivable

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
--------------------------- Rupees---======ccmmmmmmmmmmcmmmm e
Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 41,707,712 41,707,712 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 16,069,782 - 16,069,782 14,324,403
1to 2 years - Substandard - -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 8,858 - 8,858 8,858
More than 3 years - Loss 7120,917 - 7,120,917 7,120,915
64,907,269 41,707,712 23,199,557 21,454,176
2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Suspension
----------------------------- Rupees--------------------cc .
Not yet due - - - -
Less than 6 months 18,376,667 18,376,667 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 151,778 - 151,778 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 184,104 - 184,104 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 129,218 - 129,218 -
More than 3 years - Loss 38,027,984 - 38,027,984 19,889,950
56,869,751 18,376,667 38,493,084 19,889,950

Suspension is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of requirements given under

Regulations for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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40.1.7 Aging Analysis of Musharikah investment

2021
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provision
--------------------------- Rupees----=-=-mccmmmcmcmcccc e

Not Yet Due 510,581,270 510,581,270 - -
Less than 6 months 9,193,845 - 9,193,845 -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 2,514,420 - 2,514,420 -
1to 2 years - Substandard 1,623,264 - 1,623,264 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 9,742,742 - 9,742,742 -
More than 3 years - Loss 48,900,000 - 48,900,000 15,761,143

582,555,541 510,581,270 71,974,271 15,761,143

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential
Regulations for Modarabas and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.

2020
Past due Total Non-classified Classified Provision
————————————————————————————— Rupees------------commmmmmm -

Not yet due 509,844,905 509,844,905 - -
Less than 6 months 36,240,675 36,240,675 - -
6 to 12 months - OAEM 40,692,536 - 40,692,536 10,561,332
1to 2 years - Substandard 6,816,317 - 6,816,317 -
2 to 3 years - Doubtful 8,400,000 - 8,400,000 -
More than 3 years - Loss 48,900,000 - 48,900,000 5,199,813

650,894,432 546,085,580 104,808,853 15,761,145

Provision is recognized by the Modaraba on the basis of provision requirements given under Prudential
Requlations for Modaraba and subjective evaluation carried out on an ongoing basis.
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40.1.8 The Modaraba manages credit risk and its concentration through diversification of activities to avoid undue concentration of risks with individuals, groups or
specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Modaraba has established exposure limits for individuals and industrial sectors.

Break down of credit risk exposure by class of business as at 30 June 2021 is as follows:

2021
Assets Morabaha Musharikah
ljarah investment investment Total % age
------------------------------------- Rupees---==-=m-cmeomcmc e eceeeeeaeeee
Textile Spinning and Composite 35,464,801 172,178,735 2,804,238 210,447,774 13.77%
Sugar and Allied - 32,000,000 - 32,000,000 2.09%
Electric Goods 100,000 93,023,643 - 93,123,643 6.09%
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 483,054 4,720,170 13,787,485 18,990,709 1.24%
Paper and Board 100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
Food and Allied 2,740,721 - 33,956,685 36,697,406 2.40%
Individuals 88,784,540 88,616,222 82,090,641 259,491,403 16.98%
Jute - - - - 0.00%
Oil and Gas - - 27,539,253 27,539,253 1.80%
Miscellaneous 30,965,233 37,091,463 21,534,191 89,590,887 5.86%
Aviation and transport 247,319,771 - 387,043,445 634,363,216 41.51%
Engineering, Steel & Construction 44,481,531 67,500,000 10,726,517 122,708,048 8.03%
Cement - - 3,073,086 3,073,086 0.20%
450,439,651 495,130,233 582,555,541 1,528,125,425 100%
2020
Assets Morabaha Musharikah
ljarah investment investment Total % age
——————————————————————————————————————— Rupe@es----====-=-m oo
Bank and NBFl's - - - - 0.00%
Textile Spinning and Composite 40,391,050 171,104,735 4,232,936 215,728,721 12.97%
Sugar and Allied - 32,000,000 - 32,000,000 1.92%
Electric Goods 3,032,650 94,223,643 97,256,293 5.85%
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 616,347 2,720,170 25,646,217 28,982,734 1.74%
Paper and Board 100,000 - - 100,000 0.01%
Food and Allied 5,302,655 - 39,065,855 44,368,510 2.67%
Individuals 66,481,180 85,694,115 90,089,953 242,265,248 14.57%
Jute - - - - 0.00%
QOil and Gas - - 42,190,906 42,190,906 2.54%
Miscellaneous 44,197,874 48,674,949 39,213,306 132,086,129 7.94%
Aviation and transport 300,936,139 - 398,263,043 699,199,182 42.05%
Engineering, Steel & Construction 48,851,189 67,500,000 5,854,511 122,205,700 7.35%
Cement - - 6,337,705 6,337,705 0.38%
509,909,085 501,917,611 650,894,432 1,662,721,128 100%
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40.31

Profit rate risk

At the reporting date, the profit rate profile of Modaraba's significant profit bearing financial instruments and the periods in
which they mature is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Effective profit rate Carrying amount
(Percentage) (Rupees)
Financial assets
Musharikah investments 9.32-19.98 8.55-22.55 566,794,398 635,133,289
Morabaha investment 8.50 - 19.90 8.50 - 23.00 250,768,854 305,442,787
Cash and bank balances 4.25 - 8.94 4.25-1313 54,481,418 46,095,558
872,044,670 986,671,634
Financial liabilities
Redeemable Capital 5.35 -13.60 5.35-13.75 1,014,101,593 1,013,549,225
Musharikah finance 7.25-7.84 11.22 -13.85 535,128,774 648,738,613

1,549,230,367 1,662,287,838

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in profit rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit for the year by the

amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the basis
for 2021.

Profit and loss 100 bps

40.3.2

Increase Decrease
As at 30 June 2021
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 8,720,447 11,835,908
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (15,492,305) (16,691,400)
Net effect (6,771,858) (4,855,492)

Profit and loss 100 bps
Increase Decrease

As at 30 June 2020
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 9,866,716 (9,866,716)
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (16,622,879) 16,622,878
Net effect (6,756,163) 6,756,162

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Modaraba.
Currency risk

As at 30 June 2021, there is no foreign exchange exposure on Morabaha's balance sheet.

40.4 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Modaraba's operations either internally within the Modaraba or externally at the
Modaraba's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from
legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks
arise from all of the Modaraba's activities.
- The Modaraba's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its
reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for certificate holders.
- The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of
Directors of the management Company. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:
- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address
the risks identified;
- ethical and business standards;
- risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

41 Fair value of financial instruments
The IFRS-13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

111 Capital risk management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Modaraba

defines as net operation income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend
pavouts to certificate holders.
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term musharikah finance
Profit payable

Redeemable capital

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of ijarah assets
Depreciation of assets in own use
Amortization of Intagible Assets
Gain on disposal of ljarah assets
Gain on disposal of owned assets
Dividend Income
Gain on disposal of non-banking assets
Reversal for impairment of ijarah assets
(Reversal) / Provision for musharikah investment
(Reversal) / Provision for ljara investment
Financial charges on musharikah finances
Financial charges on redeemable capital

Operating profit before working capital changes

Workina capital chanaes
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Morabaha investment
Purchase of assets under ijarah arrangements
Investment in musharikah-net
Purchase of Software
Purchase of assets-Development Properties
Proceeds from transfer of ijarah assets
ljarah Rental Receivable - net
Dividend Income
Trade Receivable

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Security deposits - net
Trade and other payables

Net changes in operating assets and operating liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Balance as at 01 Availed / Repaid / Balance as at 30
July 2020 Announced Reedeemed June 2021
648,738,613 4,425,797,407 (4,539,407,246) 535,128,774
17,458,341 - (91,256) 17,367,085
1,013,549,225 1,010,500,000 (1,009,947,632) 1,014,101,593
1,679,746,179 5,436,297,407 (5,549,446,134) 1,566,597,452
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
18,107,759 (56,038,676)
121,115,017 96,857,165
1,157,700 954,888
797,814 -
(1,815,709) (767,302)
(25,297) -
(590,783) (675,180)
(1,900,000) (1,333,000)
(5,000,000) -
- 7,051,617
(13,168,058) 293,700
47,060,064 124,632,929
71,997,139 82,875,907
219,627,887 309,890,724
237,735,646 253,852,048
41,509,917 6,251,809
(90,535,199) (327,113,090)
68,338,891 215,555,198
(1,200,000) -
(6,975,000) -
53,873,383 84,825,225
41,836,438 26,981,742
(100,000)
(23,672,241) (2,448,547)
(12,756,102) (76,650,174)
70.420.087 (72.697.837)
(15,253,212) 409,455
25,411,486 28,525,314
10,158,274 28,934,769
80,578,361 (43,763,068)
318,314,007 210,088,980
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Note 2021 2020
44 Provident fund Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund 5,256,866 4,874,516
Percentage of investments made 100% 100%
Fair value of investments made 4,400,000 4,000,000
Cost of investment made 4,400,000 4,000,000
Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentaae of the size of the
2021 2020
(Audited) (Audited)
Investment Investment as % of Investment Investment as % of
size of the fund size of the fund
Term Deposit Receipts 4,400,000 100% 4,000,000 100%
4,400,000 100% 4,000,000 1.0

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of sections 218 of the Companies Act,

2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

45 Date of authorization for issue

The unconsolidated financial statements of Modaraba were approved by the Directors of Modaraba Management Company

and authorized for issue on October 29, 2021.

46 General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless otherwise provided.

For Punjab Modaraba Services (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Company)

oy iy Ay

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services Punjab Modaraba Services
( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited ( Private ) Limited
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Managed By:

Punjab Modaraba Services (Pvt) Ltd.
(A wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Punjab)

Ofice No. 100, 3rd Floor, National Tower, 2B8-Egerton Road, Lahore, Postal Code No. 54000, PAKISTAN
Phone:; 042-36365101-03 Fax; 042-36365105
email: info@punjabmodaraba.com.pk Website: www punjabmoedaraba.com.pk



